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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

HELRBERENE (L8) ROBRIE

Definitions

Ba

In this report, the following expressions have the meanings set RAmEF - RIEXEZEAE - T3H

out below unless the context requires otherwise:

“Actual Controller”

[EEREZEHIA

“ASD”

[ = PR ERE |

“Audit Committee”
E=5E3-

“Board”
[EET

“CG Code”
[{EERSTAD]

“CHD’

[ S R DB s |

“Company”

[ARRdaE]]

“controlling shareholder(s)”
[ 2 A% A% 3R

“Dr. Pu”

[SEEL ]

REE XN ¢

the individual or entity that can control a company by way
of investment relationship, contracts or other arrangements
according to the Listing Rules of the ChiNext Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (RINEHZ ZFBIERBRE LT
811)) where Lepu Medical, our controlling shareholder, is listed
BEZERBRREERE Fmin ORYESRZZAEIERKRE LM
RAD  RBREBK BERIEEBLEEAEBERIERRITA
B EA K E 58

atrial septal defect, a remnant opening, or a defect, between
the left and right atria resulting from the abnormal development,
absorption and fusion of the atrial septum during embryonic
development

FERERRE - BiREERIET  FRRBHNES RKA@MESHERE
B AUEZENEE ARMSERE

the audit committee of the Board
EEEgHTLES

the board of Directors of the Company
KARESE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules
CETARRD M ERC1ATE KR EEVE<PRI)

congenital heart disease, the formation of the heart and blood
vessels during embryonic development or abnormal development
or failure to close the channels that should be automatically
closed after birth, resulting in abnormalities in the solid structure
or function of the blood vessels in the heart or thoracic cavity
TR O - EREREERARN O R NDENEKERKES
ERRHARESDHAMNBERERS  SEOMIBBEANE
M BBEB RS

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*
(BELRBERHR(LB)RMNAERAF), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC on January 29, 2021
and whose Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange

LELRBEMR(LB)ROHBARAR - —KK2021F1H29H
RAEBKZORNDBERAR - HRGORBER T ER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BERC(ETRANDE T &A% E

Dr. Pu Zhongijie (324E), one of the controlling shareholders of
the Company and the Actual Controller of Lepu Medical
BREELT  ARRERRR  — RELTEBENERIZSIA



“Director(s)”

(&%)

EIM”
[FIM ]

“Global Offering”
[BFREE ]

» o« » oo«

“Group”, “we”, “us”, or “our”

EX LIEIET

“HK dollar” or “HK$”
[E7T]

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“KOLs”

[EARER]

“LAA”

[ OH ]

»

“Lepu Medical

[SEEEE]

“Listing”
=
“Listing Date”
[ LA
“Listing Rules”
[ EmRAD]

“Main Board”

[E1R]
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the director(s) of the Company
RARES

First in man

Enur_%_/)\/\ﬁ%g%&

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Prospectus

BB RBRERE T AR E

the Company and its subsidiary from time to time
AR RETEHHE QR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EREEERET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEBEBEFRITTRER

key opinion leaders, who are professionals that influence their
peers’ medical practice, including but not limited to prescribing
behavior

¥REXR  RERITHNBEREER (BREETRRESTTR)ELER
ZMNERXAL

left atrial appendage, a long, narrow and curved blind-end
structure extending forward and downward along the anterior
wall of the left atrium, which has active diastolic and secretory
functions

EOE R URERTRIERAT TERERE  SEHNEmREE - A
BEEEHEA D WINEE

Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.# (4% (1t R)E&E
BWMIHERAF]), a company listed on the ChiNext Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300003, one of our
controlling shareholders

g () BESEWROBRA RORIIFE X Z PRI
R E E’J/Aﬁ(ﬁa’%ﬁﬁ% : 300003) 7%? Hxﬂ“iz—

the listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on November 8, 2022
P&fnpA2022F 11 H8 BB PR EIR £ 77

November 8, 2022, being the date on which the Shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

2022% 11 A8H « BIARR G RO IRERFTER _ ETH A B HA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange
Bt SX PreE 7 E AR Al

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
B X T E R

(3)
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

HELRBERENE (L8) ROBRIE

Definitions

Ba

“Model Code”

[{REESTA)

“‘NMPA”

ot

=
bt

[BIREER]
“Nomination Committee”
[REZREE

“PDA”

[ BIIRE & AR

‘PFO”

[OR[E FLAREA

“PRC” or “China”

[

“Prospectus”
[k ER]

“Remuneration Committee”

[HHZEE

“Reporting Period”
[#REH ]

“RMB”
AR ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 3R

“Shares”
[ A&7 ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 22 FfT

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

N ETARBDMSECINC EMBITAESETESFRHNFLE
<FAID

the National Medical Products Administration of the PRC (Bl
BREEEEER), formerly known as the China Food and Drug
Administration

FEARANBBEREREEEER  IBENRRREREEEE
B

mR

the nomination committee of the Board
EEgREEER

patent ductus arteriosus, a remnant opening of the ductus
arteriosus, which fails to close normally in one year after birth

BIREERE - HAE—FRIVRELERAESNBIREEHEE KA

patent foramen ovale, a remnant opening of the fetal foramen
ovale, which fails to close normally in one year after birth

SNEIFLARRA - A —FRINAREEER RS /G 5 INE FLAYE B KB

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposes of
this report, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the Macau
Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

REARHENE - gtAKEmN s - TEEESESITERR  RPIR
RIFTHE [ & /i @

the prospectus issued by the Company on October 27, 2022 in
connection with the Hong Kong public offering of the Shares

KATMEBAFHBEERMDN2022F10 A27 B BN BRZTE

the remuneration committee of the Board

EFeFMERES

six months from January 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024
B2024%F1 A1 %E2024F6 A30H 1L/~ 8A

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
HEREEEBARE

holder(s) of Share(s)
Rin BB A

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a par
value of RMB1.00 each
RRARRAHGREBEARE1.007TH) B

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBMAERHAERRAA]



“Target Medical”

[ RN |

“TAVR”

[REE X SRR E

“TMVR”

[TMVR]

“TMVr-F”

[TMVr-F]

“US$” or “USD”
=

“VSD”

[ =REfEERE

sg”
[%]

w For identification purposes only

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.”.

5

The Company is a registered non-Hong Kong company as defined
under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and it is registered under its Chinese name and
under the English name “LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology
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B=

Beijing Target Medical Technologies Co., Ltd.# (At ARl
RABRAF), a limited liability company established in the PRC
on November 18, 1999 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lepu
Medical, one of the controlling shareholders of the Company
ERRMBEHXBR AR - —RKRK1999F 11 A18 B AT BKIL
WERAT  RARFERRR s —RLEBBENZEWB AR

transcatheter aortic valve replacement, a catheter-based
technique to implant a new aortic valve in a minimally invasive
procedure that does not involve open-chest surgery to correct
severe aortic stenosis

KEEIBMORERMN - —BEREENRIN - BB TP RHERF
MR BRI T T AET &) E BRI - LAKS IEBR = 1Y BY AR B

transcatheter mitral valve repair, which provides a newer,
minimally invasive option for treating the most common form of
mitral valve leakage for people who cannot undergo open-heart
surgery. It is implanted via a tri-axial transcatheter technique and
involves suturing together the anterior and posterior mitral valve
leaflets

REE _LPHEEN - REEAEXOEERFMNAREERY
ZRIFSRIRME T RN MARRE - BB -G ERINET
BA - BE#gE ZKlaaRE

transfemoral mitral valve clip repair, a catheter-based technique
to repair the mitral valve in an interventional therapy that does
not involve open-chest surgery

BRI SRR EN - —EEREENRM - WENT A aEREE
TR R R

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America

XBEEERRET

ventricular septal defect, a defect, or a hole, in the septum
between the left and right ventricles of the heart, which may lead
to abnormal blood circulation and pulmonary hypertension and
other complications in severe cases

=ERRE - DR EOENRERNRIESIVRN - BREE TSR
MR EER R 5 K i Eh AR = JBE LA K2 B At ff 35 AE

per cent

B

¢ EHHS)

* AL AR BB Z N F 6225 (2 AF
BIDPTEZE R FEE N YR XEE

R E T [LEPU ScienTech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. |3 °
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
#EORBERRE (L8) ROBRAR

Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairman)
Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yuxin
Mr. Fu Shan
Mr. Zheng Guorui

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi (resigned on July 26, 2024)

Mr. Zheng Junwei (appointed on July 26, 2024)

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Wang Xinglin
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong
Mr. Qian Weidong

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Zheng Guorui
Mr. Zheng Yufeng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zheng Yufeng (Chairperson)

Ms. Chen Juan

Mr. Fu Shan

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Liu Daozhi (resigned on July 26, 2024)

Mr. Zheng Junwei (appointed on July 26, 2024)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairperson)

Mr. Zheng Guorui

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi (resigned on July 26, 2024)

Mr. Zheng Junwei (appointed on July 26, 2024)
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BITEE
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FRITES
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Qin Xue
Mr. Li Kin Wai (appointed on August 22, 2024)
Ms. Ko Mei Ying (resigned on August 22, 2024)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Chen Juan

Mr. Li Kin Wai (appointed on August 22, 2024)

Ms. Ko Mei Ying (appointed on March 1, 2024
and resigned on August 22, 2024)

Ms. Zhang Yuxin (resigned on March 1, 2024)

LEGAL ADDRESS IN THE PRC

Room 201

Building 41

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road
Songjiang District
Shanghai

PRC

ADDRESS OF HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

1/F, 5/F

Building 41

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road
Songjiang District
Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

5/F, Manulife Place
348 Kwun Tong Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

HELRBERENE (L8) ROBRIE

Corporate Information

DNEEHR

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong law

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati

As to PRC law

Haiwen & Partners

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of Shanghai

China Merchants Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Bank of Ningbo

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.scientechmed.com/
LISTING DATE

November 8, 2022

STOCK CODE

2291

ERERE

FRERERE

B FRiRe RTUE o h AT e B M E RN B TSR
FRPEER
SN EE S ES
TEEHERE
BEBESFELARAR

95

BRE165%
ERTEPLOITE
FEERBIT

LEBIRTT

BEIRIT

H B TRy ERTT

R ERTT

ALE L
http://www.scientechmed.com/
LtHEM

2022%11 A8H

Rz {7 5%
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Revenue increased by 49.7% from RMB166.4 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB249.1 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Gross profit increased by 53.4% from RMB147.7 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB226.7
million for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Research and development expenses decreased by 21.3%
from RMB27.6 million for the six months ended June 30,
20283 to RMB21.7 million for the six months ended June
30, 2024.

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent
company increased by 85.6% from RMB75.6 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB140.2 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Interim Report 2024
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—E-HR \\7/

Financial Highlights
MBEE

WA BEZ202396 A30H 1L /XA
AARBA66.4BBTERK49.7%
EHZE2024F6 A30H E/NE AR
ARBE2A91EHETT -

FEFBEZE2023F6 A308 1E /XA
AARBA47.7ABTIERKS3.4%
EHE2024F6 A30H 1N E A
ARBE226.7THETT °

MEERABEE2023F6 A30H
ERNEANARK27.6BE TR
21.3% & HE£2024F6 A30H IF/~
BAAMARE217TEETT -

EBRTRARRENFFNBEREE
2023F 6 A30H LA AWM AR
75.6 B& LI K85.6% EE £2024
F6A30HIESNEANARK140.2
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SZELRBEMNE (B8) ROEBRALA

Financial Highlights
MBEE

Notes: e

M

According to the “Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance
of Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland
Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong
Kong” (EBBEZEEA LmHORMARK I ARFEAANMSE
T RETEARE BRI FHANERLE4L)) published
by the Stock Exchange in December 2010, PRC incorporated
issuers listed in Hong Kong are allowed to prepare their financial
statements in accordance with the China Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises (the “CASBE”) and PRC audit firms
approved by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the China
Securities Regulatory Commission are allowed to adopt the China
Standards on Auditing in providing services to such issuers.
In order to improve working efficiency, lower disclosure costs
and audit costs, on April 8, 2024, the Board has approved to
change the overseas financial report disclosure standards of the
Group from the International Financial Reporting Standards to the
CASBE. The annual general meeting was held and approved the
corresponding changes to the Articles of Association on May 23,
2024. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated April 8, 2024 and July 17, 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated April 19, 2024. The Group will disclose its
financial reports according to the CASBE and relevant regulations
since 2024. The Group’s financial statements and interim results
for the six months ended June 30, 2024 have been prepared
under the CASBE, and the relevant comparative figures for 2023
have been appropriately adjusted pursuant to the CASBE. Figures
for the corresponding period of 2023 used in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this report were
restated.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this report
have been subject to rounding. Accordingly, figures shown as
totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of
the figures preceding them. Any discrepancies in any table or
chart between the total shown and the sum of the amounts listed
are due to rounding.

RIEB AT 2010F 12 BRI N(EH
BXERS ETHAREMK A RK
AR KRB ER D RER A
SHMEHNGBRGE)  EE8Lm
By B SRR S BT A E R IR A
ESHEAN((PECESHEL DR
BEHPBHRE  MEREM B R
BHEBEBRZESRUMNTESHA
BB ET AL EHITARBRER
FRAREEME AR ER - BiRA
TSR BREBEFERARETEA -
BEER2024F4 A8 AL ESAERES
SN 765 R 5 9% R 4 A e B B B T RS
A E ARECESEL - ARER
20246523 AT TRREFRE -
WHtE T HCARER)WBEET - B
FE B2HARRIBEA2024F4
A8HK2023F7 A17TAMAERALR
AIAHIA2024F4 B10BMIEBK - A%
B 12024 F A - IGEP B RS IRRF
B Eer LA RBAERER - A&
BEZE2024F6 A30H 1L /NE AN
BERTHEECREBEPRECESE
AR HR2023F 2 BB T AR
PRECESHENEHEEZAR - &
HEBEEEN WA —8FTA2023
FRRBPH T AEEINERIEE -

ABREMBETEERBSLEFEH
B Ry ETRBEF—WAMIITRH
BFXEBFHENFERSRLEEE
A o EfRIR AR 3K B 3R AT 48 BUER AR 51 B
BAMZANERTOEMRE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

As a pioneer and domestic leading supplier in the structural
heart disease interventional medical devices industry in China,
we have been focusing on the research and development,
manufacture and commercialization of structural heart disease
interventional medical devices. We are successfully practicing
degradability based on the proven operations of traditional
metal medical devices, exploring the frontier fields of the
atrial septal puncture, cardiac mechanical circulatory support
and other medical devices, and committed to providing safe,
effective, innovative and comprehensive medical solutions.

As of the date of this report, we had a total of 22 marketed
occluders and accessory products, four products with NMPA
registration certificates, four products under registration review
and preparation for registration, and 25 product candidates in
various stages of research and development such as occluders,
heart valves and procedural accessories and mechanical
circulatory support. The following chart summarizes the
development status of our product portfolio up to the date of
this report:

EEEWED T

E £ 0]

ERTEABIEORANT ABRSMITE
METEMBERRENEERS - HfI—E
ﬁE?ﬁC,aTﬁl_tE/uEﬁEF BT A28k

HERBERL  RAESRcBBE
HEX%}EL{’EE’J%E‘H: EEMDEER

fRER(L - ARARATERRBEFHER
ZERI - DB TR IR B) F B RS AV AT

HEE  BIRRERZE B
EHMERBRTE -

BTN

HEARFREEH  BAOLFTHEE22HE
FHEHESAEGER  URERDES
NMPAGEEE © U FGEM R & 2
FER - BA5FER TR RO
HEs - DREIER R FIE A - AR E R
PEEMESR - TEBAKMEREEE
EARNE BB AR

(11)
N\
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

Product

Pre-clinical

MemoPart®
ASD occluder (Double-rivet)

Clinical Trial Registration

Commercialized

MemoPart®
ASD occluder (Single-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoSorb® *
full-degradable occluder systems

Commercialized

R | commerdalized
occluder Oxide coating ASD occluder
with single-rivet _Preparation of CE
registration materials
MemoSorb® * . Obtained NMPA
Biodegradable ASD occluder registration certificate
MemoPart® C ialized
VSD occluder (Double-rivet) ClEdEE
MemoPart® . 1
V3 chuer Sigleive
Ventricular —
y " Oxide coating VSD occluder :
("VSD") with single-rivet Preparation of CE
occluder registration materials

Preparation for

initiating of overseas
clinical trials

Em

MemoPart® 75 ] F LR B A 25 (B4

i P L B A

(S E (4

MemoPart® 5 [H R Gk 335 25 (RE.400)

SYCE (4

CEE & B} e il

MemoSorb® 4= [ fif £ 1% 4% R 4 *

5 Tl B B 7 N Tl
AL B AL 5 ] B AR s A S
SRR TS 0 5 ] R fpR #E e ——™
plemoSorb? * C A NMPAGE it
He )T R AR T R AR S 2 .
MemoPart®Z [H] fE AR 3% &5 (BE80) [BYHE (4
MemoPart®Z [H] R BLE B4 (B4 B Y4

w24

MemoCarna®

I 0 cennnra

SYCE (4

5 A 25 A B B e

Commercialization
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

Product

Pre-clinical

Patent ductus
arteriosus
("PDA") occluder

MemoPart®
PDA occluder (Double-rivet)

Clinical Trial

Registration | Commercialization

Commercialized

MemoPart®
PDA occluder (Single-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoCarna®
Oxide coating PDA occluder

Commercialized

(@)
m|

3“‘

review in pr

[¢]
n
[

("LAA") occluder

Biodegradable LAA occluder

MemoPart® . -
PFO occluder (Double-rivet/Single-rivet) Commercialized
Patent foramen y—
ovale ("PFO" SRl o
occ(luder ) Biodegradable PFO occluder * Commercialized
NeoSorb®
Bioabsorbable PFO occluder
. MemolLefort® . -
Left atrial LAA occluder system Commercialized
appendage
Bio-Lefort®

valve clip repair (“TMVr-F") system

Biodegradable aortic occluder Y Animal test
Aortic and
peripheral Embolization occluder Animal test
occluders
Peripheral hydrogel spring coil Design stage
ScienCrown® NMPA registration review in progress
Transcatheter aortic valve ¢
replacement (“TAVR") system CE animal tests
ScienMelon®
Artificial heart valve with polymer * m
Aortic valve leaflets for transcatheter implantation
roducts i ® i X
p ScienChute lTranscatheter aortic Design stage
valve stenosis therapy system
ScienChute®
) Design
Pulsed acoustical generator esign stage
Transcatheter aortic valve system )
(regurgitation indication TAVR) Animal test
MemoChord® Transapical mitral valve m
repair system (chordal) (“TMVCRS")
MemoClip-A® Transapical mitral * m
Mitral valve valve clip repair (“TMVr-A") system
products MemoClip-F® Transfemoral mitral

Clinical
n 0

Transcatheter mitral valve
replacement (“TMVR") system

=
(]
Q
wn
o+
[ ]
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

=]
AR

E

HR PR

MemoPart® B4 R PHE &R (1)

A

[E 3]

[YE (4

BIRAT MemoPart® B R348 A PAEHSE#F (HL40)
=}

[BYE (4

PNk
MemoCarna®

AACTEB R EAL R PR AR

BB |4

CEzE i 5+

MemoPart®

B IEI LA PRSI B (S, 40

[EYE (4

MemoSorb®

P AT AR B IR FLOR PRI 2

RIELALA PHERE AR *

NeoSorb® A 49 T Wz i B9 [ L A< PH &F 15 4%

KBIBERG R

[V E (4

MemoLefort® 77 0 H- 135 2% R 41

[V E (4

7oL HENE

Bio-Lefort®
AR R Ao D AR AR

KBIBERR R

T R AR

LOEZNEY

EBIRESM | e mrgss

B T

BB
S K BRI i

o

‘%‘:‘g
ik
¥
e

ScienCrown®

ROEEA R E B IR R

NMPA 5 i 85 5%

CEBYIE 5

ScienMelon®
LR R TR
o o NRRIY i
FEARARE i

B TS

ScienChute®

KORAE BRI G R A

weat BB

ScienChute® JJR 1755 i 55 - 5

T

gl:
ik
=
P

RO TEIRRR AL CRITEMEETAVR)

B TR

MemoChord® £ .0 2R R IHEHE
& (%) ([TMVCRS])

FIM

MemoClip-A® #0002 R AAER *
F% (TMVr-A )

RHABEER R

— 21N 1
—RRESR MemoClip-F° 48 1l — 4 4 i 12
# % ([TMVr-FJ)

T AR R

FOEAE T OIEEHIT ([TMVR] ) R4

LOEZNY
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Product

Pre-clinical Clinical Trial Registration  Commercialization

Atrial septal
puncture and
procedural
accessories

RF-Lance®
Radiofrequency puncture devices

*

Obtained NMPA registration certificate

RF-Lance® ) _
Disposable radiofrequency atrial *
septal puncture needles

Obtained NMPA registration certificate

Disposable atrial septal
puncture system

Obtained NMPA registration certificate

MemoPart®
Interventional delivery system

Commercialized

GuiBend®
Integrated interventional delivery system

Commercialized

CE registration

review in progress

GuiFinder® Occluder delivery system

Commercialized

GuiFlex®
Integrated interventional delivery sheath

Commercialized

Gruiser® Interventional delivery system

Commercialized

G-Cruiser®
Interventional delivery system

Commercialized

MemoPart® Snare

Commercialized

Multiple-loop Snare

Commercialized

SimoMelon® Balloon dilatation
catheter for aortic valve

*

NMPA registration review in progress

Disposable introducing sheath

Commercialized

Thrombus protection device

. Clinical
preparation stage

StarCross® Disposable delivery sheath

Preparation for registration materials

Vascular closure device system

Transvalvular guide wires

Super stiff guidewire

Preparation for registration materials
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Interatrial
shunt device

Interatrial shunt device |

Interatrial shunt device Il
(Biodegradable)

Animal test

FireyDeva® Interatrial shunt device Il
(Radiofrequency ablation shunt device)

FireyDeva® Radiofrequency ablation
device (Device)

Mechanical
circulatory
support products

Transcatheter left ventricular
support device

*

Animal test

Coronary protection left
ventricular support system

*

Design stage

Small diameter transcatheter
left ventricular support system

*

Design stage

Hypertensive
device
treatment
products

Pulmonary artery radiofrequency
ablation catheter

*

Design stage

Ultrasonic greater splanchnic nerve
ablation catheter

*

Animal test
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The business segments of the Company maintained a
sound development trend overall, achieving stable growth
in its revenue. For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the
Company achieved revenue of RMB249.1 million, representing
a period-on-period increase of 49.7% from the six months
ended June 30, 2023; net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company of RMB140.2 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2024, representing a period-on-period increase
of 85.6% from the six months ended June 30, 2023; net cash
flow generated from operating activities of RMB103.5 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024, representing a
period-on-period increase of 67.8% from the six months ended
June 30, 2023. As of June 30, 2024, the total assets of the
Group were RMB2,149.5 million, representing an increase of
8.2% from the beginning of the Reporting Period, and the net
assets were RMB1,880.9 million, representing a decrease of
2.4% from the beginning of the Reporting Period.

CHD Occluder Products

As at the date of this report, the Group owned 10 commercially
available CHD occluder products, among which, MemoCarna®
[l oxide coating single-rivet occluder series products have fast
become the backbone of the CHD occluder products business
after its approval for marketing in 2020. The MemoSorb® IV
fully-degradable occluder systems have been also rapidly
commercialized and become the Group’s flagship product
in the CHD field upon its approval for marketing in 2022.
Leveraging on the long-term technology accumulation, the rapid
growth trend of the Group’s business has been established
through technology upgrading, products iteration and original
technology. This is the cornerstone for us to maintain our
leading position in the field of CHD interventional therapy and to
continue to drive.

In line with our philosophy of “No Implantation for Intervention”,
the Group continued to promote the research and development
of biodegradable technology. Our fourth generation MemoSorb®
biodegradable ASD occluder product has obtained a medical
device registration certificate granted by the NMPA on August
14, 2024.
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PFO and LAA Occluder Products

Our first generation cardioembolic stroke prevention products,
being LAA occluder and PFO occluder products, were
successfully commercialized in 2020 and 2012, respectively.

Our second generation cardioembolic stroke prevention
product candidates have applied our biodegradable technology
creatively, of which, the second generation MemoSorb®
biodegradable PFO occluder product was approved for
marketing in September 2023. The PFO surgeries have a
larger market and better market prospects coupled with the
Company’s innovative biodegradable material technology, the
products have gained widespread attention and popularity in
the market upon their launch, and have achieved excellent sales
results in the early stage of product commercialization. During
the Reporting Period, the biodegradable PFO occluder achieved
an outstanding sales performance and its revenue accounted
for nearly one-third of the total revenue of the Company,
thus becoming another blockbuster product of the Group in
the implementation of the philosophy of “No Implantation for
Intervention”. It was also a typical example of the Company’s
innovative products with significant commercialization
results. The Company’s another important application of the
biodegradation technology, Bio-Lefort® biodegradable LAA
occluder product candidate has successfully completed its
pre-clinical type inspection stage and animal test stage as
planned and officially entered the stage of multi-center clinical
trial enrollment.
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Heart Valve Product Candidates

The Company’s products in heart valve field mainly covered
aortic valve and mitral valve products. Our ScienCrown® is in
the process of registering with the NMPA in order. ScienCrown®
valve has distinct structural differences from the previously
marketed self-expanding valve and balloon dilation valve. As
a short stent self-expanding valve, it is featured with smooth
pre-bending over the arch, release coaxial, stable expansion,
good support and 100% recovery under working condition
of artificial valve, etc., which could address the pain points
of clinical demand in an optimal manner and greatly shorten
the surgeon’s learning curve, thus bringing a new standard of
care to patients and providing a better clinical experience in
valve performance and prognosis. The product is expected to
be approved for marketing in the fourth quarter of 2024. After
the product is approved for marketing, through differentiated
competition method, the Company expects that it will bring
safer and better products to clinical-end and also generate
greater revenue to the Company, which will greatly change
the competitive layout of the Company in the field of domestic
structural heart disease. In addition, we are developing a
transcatheter aortic valve system for patients with simple
aortic regurgitation. The product adds a clamped positioning
design to the valve based on the prototype of ScienCrown®
TAVR system which is suitable for dual indications of valvular
insufficiency and stenosis, and adds a bending function based
on the pre-bending feature of the original delivery system to
improve operational performance of clamped positioning design.
The product has completed animal tests and type inspection
currently and it planned to carry out clinical trials in 2025. Our
transapical mitral valve clip system is currently in the final stage
of clinical trial enrollment with satisfactory follow-up results. We
will accelerate the progress of subsequent clinical trial enrolment
and we plan to submit a registration application to the NMPA in
the second half of 2024. We conducted independent innovation
and optimization in the product design and also drew on the
extensive experience from clinicians in respect of transcatheter
mitral valve clip system, enabling the design and performance
of the product much more acclimated to China patients and
the usage habits of China physicians. It is currently in the
pre-clinical preparation stage and is about to initiate the clinical
trials. Our self-developed TMVR system has completed the
implantation in the animal and the follow-up of six months after
surgery, with satisfactory results, and it is about to progress
into the stage of type inspection simultaneously.
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Mechanical Circulatory Support Products

The Company has expanded into the field of mechanical
circulatory support (“MCS”) devices, which are designed to
provide temporary or long-term support to patients requiring
cardiac assisted power. The portfolio of our MCS device
product line covers both short- and long-term products, which
are designed to assist or replace the pumping function of
the ventricles. The portfolio of our MCS device product line
includes transcatheter ventricular support system, high-risk
percutaneous coronary interventions (“PCI”) ventricular support
system, expandable trochanteric ventricular support system and
wholeheart support system. In particular, the transcatheter left
ventricular support system suitable for left ventricular support is
in the pre-clinical type inspection stage, and mass animal tests
have been carried out. The supporting peelable sheaths and
other interventional accessories with self-developed materials
have been designed and entered type inspection stage and
bioassay stage. Small diameter transcatheter left ventricular
support system and high-risk PCI coronary protection left
ventricular support system for patients requiring low-flow
support or high-risk PCl patients will progress into the stage
of type inspection in the near future. The Company is an early
pioneer in the field of MCS in the PRC, which is still emerging
in the PRC with a bright market prospect. With the Company’s
profound research and development capability and technology
accumulation in active medical device field, the Company will
provide patients in the field with the most optimal medical
solutions, and is confident that it will become one of the most
core and valuable participants in the field.

Pathway Products

Pathway products mainly include CHD occluder products and
procedural accessories for heart valve, and also include atrial
septal radiofrequency puncture product candidates and others.

RF-Lance® Radiofrequency puncture devices and RF-Lance®
Disposable radiofrequency atrial septal puncture needles have
been approved for marketing in the PRC in April and July
2024, respectively. The approval of these two products further
enriches the Company’s product lines, and the Company
has become one of the high-quality suppliers with the most
comprehensive product lines in the field of structural heart
disease in China.
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Occluders and accessory products are important component
parts of occlusion surgery. As at the date of this report,
the Group has owned nine commercially available occluder
related procedural accessories, and in line with the increasing
commercialization level of occluder products, the accessory
products have also achieved considerable revenue. Our Snare |
product has obtained a registration certificate and list for sale in
the second half of 2023.

The Company owned six types of valve related procedural
accessories, including, among others, balloon dilatation catheter
for aortic valve, super stiff guidewire, thrombus protection
device and vascular closure device system. In particular, the
balloon dilatation catheter for aortic valve has been filed for
registration to the NMPA at the end of 2023, and is expected
to be approved for marketing in the second half of 2024; the
super stiff guidewire has obtained the type inspection and
biological reports, is in the process of preparation of registration
information, will be submitted for registration in the second
quarter of 2024 and is expected to be approved for marketing
at the end of 2024; we have completed the product’'s R&D
design and inspection for vascular closure device system
with innovative design structure, which can reduce vascular
complications and provide physicians with excellent ease-to-use
experience. It is currently in the stage of animal tests, and plans
to be filed for registration in the second half of 2024.

Hypertensive Device Treatment Products

So far, pulmonary hypertension (“PH”) is a progressive and
incurable disease caused by pulmonary vascular structural or
functional changes as a result of a variety of heterogeneous
diseases (etiology) and different pathogenesis which will cause
the clinical and pathophysiological syndromes of pulmonary
vascular resistance and higher pulmonary arterial pressure
and patients who have severe consequences will develop into
right heart failure and even death. PH is a common disease
that seriously jeopardizes the lives and health of patients, the
survival time of patients with PH can be significantly improved
through standardized etiological treatments and aggressive
targeted drug therapy. The Company has completed the
development and design of pulmonary artery radiofrequency
ablation catheter, and it is expected to carry out animal tests
and type inspection in the second half of 2024. In addition, in
terms of device for the treatment of refractory hypertension,
we also have developed an ultrasonic greater splanchnic
nerve ablation catheter product. Currently, the Company has
completed research and development and design of the product
and animal tests are going on. It is expected to carry out type
inspection in the third quarter of 2024.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, we will be committed to provide safe,
effective, innovative and comprehensive medical solutions for
patients with structural heart disease and heart disease related
fields by continuously adhering to the corporate mission of
“shape better lives with heartfelt care” (F/0:F812, FXRLFTA).

We will continue to develop new technologies and focus on
the core technologies and product development targeting
structural heart diseases to enrich our product portfolio to
cover a full range of treatment options for various field of
structural heart disease. Furthermore, we will continue to
promote technology in a number of aspects, including design
and concept innovation, material innovation, structural design
innovation, production process optimization, to further enhance
the innovation, functionality and reliability of our products.
Meanwhile, we firmly believe that biodegradable technology is
one of the important technology applications for medical device
products in the future, and will greatly drive the overall upgrade
and transformation of the medical device industry as widely
applied to our occluder product and other product candidates,
which positions us well to capitalize on the significant market
opportunities, to further explore existing market and expand into
incremental market.

In the CHD interventional devices field, we will leverage our
significant market advantages established with more than 20
years of in-depth development to continue to increase the
speed of iteration of our innovative products and drive rapid
business growth. Meanwhile, we will also continue to promote
the research and development process of our biodegradable
occluder product candidates.
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In the cardioembolic stroke prevention field, we will explore
the research and development of new PFO occlude products
and LAA occlude products, while we will continue to promote
the commercialization of our marketed products. In particular,
the biodegradable PFO product has achieved excellent sales
results during the Reporting Period after approved for marketing
in 2023. The Company will further enhance interaction and
communication with surgeons, strengthen marketing promotion,
and endeavor to broaden its sales channels in terms of depth
and breadth, with a view to further opening up the market
for the product in the second half of 2024 and over the next
few years, so as to enable more patients to enjoy the quality
experience and convenience brought by innovative medical
device products through surgical treatments. We believe, upon
application of the biodegradable technology to such field, we
are well positioned to capitalize on and share the significant
potential in the fast-growing and low-penetration domestic
market and enable more doctors and patients to enjoy our
innovative products and quality services by leveraging our
early-mover advantages, excellent product features, and
well-established sales channels, which will put us in a superior
market competitive position in such field.

In the valve stenosis and reflux therapy field, we will rely on
our existing technology platform for valve products, further
consolidate and strengthen our technological advantages,
continue to promote concept of “Tool Box”, and focus on the
development of valve products with great medical demand and
promising market while covering the full product line of valves.
Among them, we will accelerate the progress of research and
development of the TMVr-F system and the TMVR system for
the treatment of mitral valve regurgitation disease, in order
to achieve full coverage of mitral valve disease treatment and
address the increasing clinical demand from patients and
physicians. We will accelerate the advancement of iterative
new products based on ScienCrown® transcatheter aortic
valve system for Conformité Européenne (“CE”) Certificate
registration clinical trials, the special dry valve of such iterative
products, upon processing by adopting the self-developed
technology, has the advantages of stronger anti-calcification
ability, better hemodynamic effect and longer service life. We
are also developing a transcatheter aortic valve system for
patients with simple aortic regurgitation, which will complement
the ScienCrown® transcatheter aortic valve replacement system
to provide optimal treatment for patients with different types of
TAVR disease.
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Cardiac mechanical circulatory support is a life support
technology, and has become an important “bridge” treatment
for patients with acute cardiac event and end-stage heart
failure after decades of development, which also has more
extensive clinical application. It is estimated that approximately
18.7 million patients in China and more than approximately 64
million patients globally suffered from cardiac underpower, and
about 50% of them will die within five years after diagnosis.
The global market scale of MCS devices is expected to grow
at a compound annual growth rate of 10% or above from 2021
to 2028, with a market value expected to reach approximately
USD3.4 billion in 2025. The Company, as a cardiovascular
intervention medical devices company with strong spirit of
technological innovation, has been dedicated to expanding
into the blue ocean market of MCS and protective PCl. The
Company is developing a series of product candidates, which
may help patients, after marketing, improve their quality
of life and survival rate. Meanwhile, as a multidisciplinary
composite technology, such products will fully demonstrate our
technological accumulation, ensure that the Company continues
to seize the technological highland in medical devices field,
and ensure the progressive development of the Company’s
future product lines and the sustainable development of the
Company’s business.

In the structural cardiology pathway products field, we are
developing and producing a number of products, and two
pathway products have obtained certificates during the
Reporting Period. In particular, the Company is one of the
early developers of our vascular closure device candidates,
and there is no vascular closure device approved for marketing
in the PRC. It is estimated that the market size of vascular
closure devices in the PRC will have a greater growth, with
aortic valve intervention technology being the most mature
market development and the largest number of patients being
those with mitral regurgitation. The market for mitral valve
and tricuspid valve interventions will gradually expand, and
the demand for large-caliber vascular closure devices will also
increase in line with the technology development. The Company
will accelerate the research and development of vascular
occluder device products to meet and lead the market demand.
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The transseptal procedures is one of the key techniques in
cardiac intervention therapy. Compared with traditional puncture
techniques, radiofrequency puncture has higher success rate
and safety, and the learning curve of surgeons is short, so such
products are expected to quickly complete the replacement
of mechanical needles. Currently, the transseptal procedures
has been used for mitral valve repair, LAA occluder, and other
procedures to obtain left heart access by transfemoral access.
According to the statistics, there are more than approximately
300,000 surgeries using puncture techniques in the United
States every year, and the potential treatment population in
China is more than approximately 10 million with an extra low
penetration rate. The domestic market for such surgery has yet
to be further developed with a considerable market prospect
in the future. At present, no radiofrequency puncture products
are approved for marketing in China, and radiofrequency atrial
septal puncture system of the Company has been approved
for marketing in the PRC in April and July 2024, which will
enable the Company to enter into the new market in the field
of structural heart disease at a rapid pace. Such product is
expected to win a new blue ocean market for the Company
and become a pillar product in the product lines of the pathway
products.

We will strengthen our marketing team building, explore
potential marketing channels, continue to expand our sales
network in China and continue to build our good reputation and
word-of-mouth among doctors and patients. We will continue
to strive to promote product brand awareness and influence
in the industry and academia, to solidify and strengthen our
communication, exchange and interaction with research
institutions, hospitals, doctors and KOLs and obtain valuable
feedback from them, and will collect and dive deep into more
market data and information, continuously improve and optimize
the product design and production process and enhance the
service capability of the sales terminal, so as to better serve the
doctors and patients with better products and more considerate
sales service capability, and strive to become one of the
important leaders in marketing and sales service in the PRC.
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In terms of the overseas business, we will actively expand our
overseas sales channels with global insight. With a rigorous,
pragmatic and sincere attitude and way of working, we will
endeavor to explore the market potential of the existing
products and increase the market penetration of the existing
products, and build up a good international reputation of our
products, to enhance recognition of Chinese brands and made
in China in the global market. We will keep abreast with the
development trend, clinical demand and market competition
layout in overseas markets in a timely manner, and formulate a
plan for overseas clinical trial and registration in a reasonable
manner, to advance the commercialization process of innovative
products such as biodegradable occluder series and valve
series in overseas markets in due course, which is conducive
to a better and sustainable development of the Company’s
overseas business so as to better implement the Company’s
internationalization strategy.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue is mainly derived from the sales of medical devices
through distributors and direct sales.

Our revenue increased by 49.7% from RMB166.4 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB249.1 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2024. The following table sets
forth a breakdown of our revenue by major products for the six
months ended June 30, 2023 and 2024.
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Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30ALAMEA

2024 2023 Change
2024E 2023% 21

RMB RMB
AE®T % ARET % %
CHD occluder products SRECERIERER 128,570,233.84 51.6  125,184,554.11 75.3 2.7
Pathway products BREER 40,346,197.08 16.2  33,777,900.85 20.3 19.4
PFO and LAA occluder products ~ JEARFRLLEREZER  79,763,191.28 320 6,817,036.15 41 1,070.1
Other products EER 420,526.45 0.2 571,822.17 0.3 -26.5
Total At 249,100,148.65 100.0 166,351,313.28 100.0 49.7
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CHD occluder products

For the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2024, more than
half of our revenue was generated from sales of CHD occluder
products. Revenue generated from sales of CHD occluder
products increased by 2.7% from RMB125.2 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB128.6 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024, representing 75.3% and 51.6%
of our revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively.
Revenue generated from sales of CHD occluder products were
able to achieve steady growth, which was primarily attributable
to our oxide-coated occluder MemoCarna® Il series products
have received broad market recognition.

Pathway products

Revenue generated from sales of pathway products increased
by 19.4% from RMB33.8 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2023 to RMB40.3 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2024, representing 20.3% and 16.2% of our revenue
in the corresponding periods, respectively. Our pathway
products primarily include interventional delivery systems and
snares mainly related to CHD occluder products. Interventional
delivery system is the largest source of our revenue generated
from sales of pathway products. The increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in the sales volume of our various
occluder products, and the sales volume of our related
procedural accessories increased accordingly. Further, our
interventional delivery system for degradable occluders obtained
the Class Il medical device registration certificate from the
NMPA in 2023, resulting in sales revenue of RMB5.0 million
during the Reporting Period. We also intend to gradually
introduce other occluder related procedural accessories and
heart valve related procedural accessories.
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PFO and LAA occluder products

Revenue generated from sales of PFO and LAA occluder
products increased by 1,070.1% from RMB6.8 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB79.8 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024, representing 4.1% and 32.0%
of our revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively. The
significant increase in revenue of these products was primarily
attributable to the successful market entry of our new product
biodegradable PFO occluders, resulting in sales revenue of
RMB79.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Other products

For the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2024, revenue
generated from the sales of other products decreased by
26.5% from RMBO0.6 million for the six months ended June
30, 2023 to RMBO0.4 million for the six months ended June
30, 2024, representing 0.3% and 0.2% of our revenue in the
corresponding periods, respectively. The sales of other products
primarily included vascular plug and products with relatively low
applicability or importance.

Operating cost

Our operating cost increased by 20.5% from RMB18.6 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB22.4 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024. Our operating cost
primarily consisted of (i) raw materials and consumables;
(i) labor costs; (iii) amortization of intangible assets; (iv)
depreciation of property, plant and equipment; (v) transportation
costs; (vi) utilities and office expenses; and (vii) others.
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The following table sets forth our cost of sales by nature in
absolute amounts and as percentages of our total cost of sales
for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2024.

TREHEHE20234F 202446 A30H
IERERREEE DM EER AR (ABY
TERREER ABENADLLYIR) °

Six months ended June 30,

#HE6H30HLLNER
2024 2023 Change
20244 20234 21t
RMB RMB
ARBT % AR % %
Raw materials and RV B RN
consumables 10,133,011.07 45.2 8,622,901.34 46.3 17.5
Labor costs AIER 5,842,466.37 26.0 4,431,313.08 23.8 31.8
Amortization of intangible EVEESE
assets 4,222 953.26 18.8  3,275,832.78 17.6 28.9
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BELRENE
plant and equipment 1,048,224.01 4.7 1,002,491.17 5.4 4.6
Transportation costs BRI 743,573.54 3.3 612,922.35 3.3 21.3
Utilities and office expenses ~ ARZEERPARX 408,813.02 1.8 555,293.85 3.0 -26.4
Others Hity 31,233.55 0.1 117,270.12 0.6 -73.4
Total CEHS 22,430,274.82 100.0 18,618,024.69 100.0 20.5

Our raw materials and consumables costs represented nitinol
products and sheathes and other metal and plastic components
used during the manufacturing process, which increased by
17.5% from RMB8.6 million for the six months ended June 30,
2023 to RMB10.1 million for the six months ended June 30,
2024, which was primarily attributable to the general increase
in sales volume of various products in the first half of 2024,
resulting in the significant increase of relevant material costs in
the first half of 2024.

Our labor costs increased by 31.8% from RMB4.4 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB5.8 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024, which was primarily attributable
to the increase in output and sales volume of various products,
resulting in an increase in remuneration of manufacturing staff.

Our amortization of intangible assets increased by 28.9% from
RMB3.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 to
RMB4.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024, which
was primarily attributable to the commencement of amortization
on the patents and medical device registration certificates of
certain products in the second half of 2023 as they obtained
their respective NMPA approvals, resulting in an increase in our
amortization of intangible assets.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2024, our
depreciation of property, plant and equipment remained
basically stable at RMB1.0 million.

Our transportation costs increased by 21.3% from RMBO0.6
million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMBO.7
million for the six months ended June 30, 2024, which was
primarily attributable to the general increase in sales volume of
various products in the first half of 2024, resulting in an increase
in our transportation costs.

Our utilities and office expenses decreased by 26.4% from
RMBO0.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 to
RMBO0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024,
which was primarily attributable to the regional resurgence of
COVID-19 in 2022, with certain property rents and property
management fees deferred to the first half of 2023, resulting in
higher expenses for the corresponding period in 2023.

Our other costs primarily include testing fees for production
environment and fees for sterilization, with relatively small cost
amounts, representing 0.6% and 0.1% of the main business
costs for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2024,
respectively.

Gross profit

Our gross profit increased by 53.4% from RMB147.7 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB226.7 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase in our gross
profit was in line with the growth in our overall revenue.

Taxes and surcharges

Our taxes and surcharges primarily include (i) urban
maintenance and construction tax; (i) education surcharge; (iii)
local education surcharge; (iv) property tax; (v) stamp duty; and
(vi) land use tax. Our taxes and surcharges increased by 14.6%
from RMB2.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 to
RMBZ2.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024, which
was primarily attributable to a general increase in sales volume
of various products of the Company, resulting in increases in
urban maintenance and construction tax, education surcharge,
local education surcharge and stamp duty.
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Selling expenses

Our selling expenses primarily included (i) labor costs; (i) travel
and transportation fees; (iii) market fees; (iv) exhibition fees; (v)
business entertainment fees; and (vi) business promotion fees.
Our selling expenses increased by 58.3% from RMB19.9 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB31.5 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024, which was primarily
attributable to (i) an increase of RMB8.2 million in labor costs
as a result of the Company’s strategic development needs to
expand the marketing team and increase marketing personnel
and (i) a total increase of approximately RMB3.0 million in
various fees such as market fees and business promotion fees
due to the successful commercialization of certain new products
of the Company in the second half of 2023.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses primarily consisted of (i) labor
costs; (i) consulting service fees; (i) share-based payment;
(iv) auditor’s remuneration; (v) depreciation and amortization
expenses; (vi) travel and transportation expenses; and (vii)
office expenses, etc. Our administrative expenses decreased
by 11.0% from RMB20.7 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2023 to RMB18.4 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2024. This was primarily attributable to a decrease
in consulting service fees of RMB2.8 million and a decrease in
auditor’s remuneration of RMBO0.6 million, primarily due to (i)
the expiry of certain Listing-related intermediary contracts in
2023 following the successful Listing of the Company on the
Stock Exchange at the end of 2022; (ii) a significant decrease
in commercial printer service fees of the Company in the first
half of 2024 in response to the Stock Exchange’s electronic
communication requirement at the end of 2023; and (i) the
change of new auditor of the Company in 2024. The decrease
in aforementioned fees was partially offset by an increase of
RMB1.0 million in labor costs.
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Research and development expenses

Our research and development expenses primarily consisted of
(i) labor costs; (i) materials, power and manufacturing inspection
fees; (iii) depreciation and amortization expenses; (iv) design
and clinical trial fees; (v) share-based payment; (vi) outsourced
research and development expenses; and (vii) other expenses.
Our research and development expenses decreased by 21.3%
from RMB27.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023
to RMB21.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024,
primarily due to (i) a decrease in labor costs of RMB2.5 million;
(i) a decrease in materials, power and manufacturing inspection
fees of RMBO0.9 million; and (i) a decrease in design and
clinical trial fees of RMB1.2 million, as a result of the relatively
large number of research and development projects for type
inspection or animal studies in the first half of 2023, which
resulted in a higher amount of related expenses.

Financial expenses

Our financial expenses primarily consisted of (i) interest
expenses; (i) interest income; (iii) exchange gains or losses;
and (iv) handling charges. Our financial expenses decreased by
404.7% from RMB-2.8 million for the six months ended June
30, 2023 to RMB-14.1 million for the six months ended June
30, 2024, primarily due to (i) an increase in interest income of
RMB7.5 million during the Reporting Period as compared to the
corresponding period last year due to the increase in available
funds of the Company and the benefit of reasonable financial
planning, which was offset against financial expenses incurred;
and (ii) a decrease in exchange losses of RMB3.9 million during
the Reporting Period as compared to the corresponding period
last year as affected by the change in exchange rate.

Loss on impairment of credit

Our loss on impairment of credit primarily represented provision
for impairment of accounts receivable and other receivables
during the Reporting Period. Our loss on impairment of credit
increased by 2,618.2% from RMBO0.3 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2023 to RMB7.1 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2024, primarily due to the significant increase in
the balance of accounts receivable as a result of the significant
increase in the Company’s business results, which increased
the provision for impairment recognised on accounts receivable.
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Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses increased by 107.3% from RMB11.5
million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB23.9
million for the six months ended June 30, 2024, which was
primarily attributable to the increase in taxable income as a
result of the increase in the Company’s business results.

Net profit

As a result of the foregoing, our net profit for the Reporting
Period increased by 85.6% from RMB75.6 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2023 to RMB140.2 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The primary uses of cash are to fund the daily operations of
the business of the Group. For the six months ended June
30, 2024, the Group principally used cash generated from
its operations, financing activities and net proceeds from the
Global Offering to meet its demand of capital expenditures and
working capital. Going forward, the Company believes that its
liquidity requirements will be satisfied with a combination of cash
flows generated from our operating activities and other funds
raised from the capital markets from time to time. As of June
30, 2024, the Group had not used any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

Cash flows

As of June 30, 2024, our cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in RMB, HK dollar, USD and Euro dollars. Our
total cash and cash equivalents decreased by 10.5% from
RMB1,212.0 million as of December 31, 2023 to RMB1,084.2
million as of June 30, 2024, which was primarily attributable to
the net cash generated from operating activities of RMB103.5
million and the net cash used in investing activities of RMB231.0
million, the net cash used in financing activities of RMBO0.9
million and the change in exchange gains on cash and cash
equivalents, a combination of which caused a decrease in cash
and cash equivalents at the end of the Reporting Period.

Borrowings

As of June 30, 2023 and 2024, we had no outstanding balance
of borrowings or unutilized banking facilities.
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Net current assets

Our net current assets decreased by 9.6% from RMB1,356.5
million as of December 31, 2023 to RMB1,225.9 million as
of June 30, 2024. Our net current assets position as of the
above dates was mainly attributable to our cash at bank and
on hand, accounts receivable, inventories, prepayments, other
receivables and financial assets held-for-trading, partially offset
by our accounts payable, contract liabilities, other payables,
employee benefits payable, taxes payables and lease liabilities
due within one year. The decrease in our net current assets
was primarily attributable to an increase in the closing balance
of other payables of RMB189.5 million as of June 30, 2024 as
a result of the declaration of final dividend for 2023, an increase
in accounts receivable of RMB40.5 million, and an increase in
the total balance of cash at bank and on hand and financial
assets held-for-trading of RMB48.6 million, a combination of
which caused a decrease in the net current assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals and Significant
Investments

We did not have any material acquisitions and disposals and
significant investments during the six months ended June 30,
2024.

Pledge of Assets

As of June 30, 2024, we did not pledge any of our assets.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Use of Net Proceeds
from Listing” in this report and the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, we did not have
detailed future plans for material investments or capital assets.

Capital Expenditure

Our total capital expenditure increased by 4.0% from
approximately RMB29.8 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2023 to approximately RMB31.0 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024. Our capital expenditure primarily
included our purchase of equipment, purchase of intangible
assets and payment for research and development expenses
of capitalization. We funded these expenditures with cash
generated from our operations and financing activities.
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Capital Commitments

Our capital commitments increased from approximately RMBO0.2
million as of December 31, 2023 to approximately RMB19.6
million as of June 30, 2024, primarily in connection with
purchase of equipment, licensing of product technologies and
right of commercialization of products.

Contingent Liabilities

As of June 30, 2024, we did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Our functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not our
functional currency. We expose ourselves to foreign exchange
risk because certain of our accounts payable, accounts
receivable and cash at bank and on hand are denominated in
foreign currencies. We will mitigate such a risk by constantly
reviewing the economic situation and foreign exchange risk, and
applying hedging measures when necessary.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As of June 30, 2024, we had 239 full-time employees
(December 31, 2023: 219), all of whom were based in China.
The total staff costs for the six months ended June 30, 2024
(including staff remuneration, bonuses, welfare cost and social
insurance fees etc.) amounted to approximately RMB52.1
million (including those capitalised staff costs of approximately
RMB9.1 million).

We primarily recruit our employees through recruitment
agencies, internal referrals and online recruiting channels,
including our corporate website, job search websites and
social networking platforms. We have adopted training
protocols, pursuant to which we provide on-board and regular
continuing trainings for our employees. As part of our human
resources strategy, we offer employees competitive salaries,
performance-based cash bonuses and other incentives.
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Indebtedness

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our lease

liabilities as of the dates indicated:—

Lease liabilities HEAE
Key Financial Ratios

The following table sets forth our key financial
period/year indicated:—

Liquidity ratio mENE RS
Current ratio BN L &
Gearing ratio HBEARE

(1) The calculation of current ratio is based on
divided by current liabilities as of the end
year.

ratios for the

current assets
of the period/

(2) The gearing ratio is calculated based on the Group’s
total liabilities divided by total assets as of the end of the

period/year.

Current ratio

Our current ratio was at 5.6 times and 23.9 times as of June

30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

The decrease in current ratio was primarily due to the change in
current assets and current liabilities as discussed in the section

headed “Net current assets”.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (including sale
of treasury shares) during the six months ended June 30, 2024.

As at June 30, 2024, the Company did not hold any treasury
shares.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

As at June 30, 2024, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief
executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
to therein, or which will be required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the six months ended June 30, 2024 was
the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that would enable the Directors or Supervisors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporates, and none of the
Directors, Supervisors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporates
or had exercised any such right.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as the Directors are aware, as at June 30, 2024, the
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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TMEBEBEMA - R2024F6 A30H - TFIA
T (WHEE  BEERARRRSTERA
B)RBRHDKBERGD P ERRE(GES
K EAE 0I) EXVERE 2 R FE 357 /AR A
NEVEE MR E GRS R RGN ) 5336
BRTEARRFENELMATL A S

Approximate
percentage in
the total issued
share capital of

the Company!
/N
Name of Class of Number of Long position/ BITERE
Shareholders Nature of interests Shares Shares  short position® e
BRME ER L §73:31 B iR %R B8 E e ke #waakn
Dr. Py (o3 Interest in a controlled corporation  H Shares Long position (L)
SHIE L (s REEZENER Hi 280,000,000 HEL 80.75%
Lepu Medical ™%  Beneficial owner H Shares Long position (L)
fEER ) ERBEAA HiR 277,200,000 HEL 79.94%
Interest in a controlled corporation  H Shares Long position (L)
REEZENER Hi 2,800,000 HEL 0.81%
Total:
&gt 280,000,000 80.75%
Notes: BEE -
1. As at June 30, 2024, the total number of issued shares of the 1. R2024F6A30H @ ARRIEEITRMG
Company was 346,749,997 shares. A8 346,749,907 ARAZD °
2. The letter (L) denotes a long position in shares of the Company. 2. [L]EERARRRMDHITE -

35 Lepu Medical held approximately 80.75% of the shareholding
interest of our Company, including approximately 0.81% indirect
shareholding interest through Target Medical and approximately
79.94% direct shareholding interest. Lepu Medical held the entire
share interest in Target Medical and was therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Target Medical under the SFO.

Dr. Pu is the actual controller of Lepu Medical and was therefore
deemed to be interested in the H shares held by Lepu Medical
under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at June 30, 2024, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which were required to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or to be entered in the register required to
be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CHANGE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND CHANGES IN COMPOSITIONS
OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Reference is made to the announcement dated July 26, 2024.
With effect from July 26, 2024, Mr. Liu Daozhi (“Mr. Liu”) has
tendered his resignation as an independent non-executive
Director in order to focus on his other business engagements,
and Mr. Zheng Junwei (“Mr. Zheng”) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director.

Following Mr. Liu’s resignation as a Director, he has also ceased
to be the member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee, and Mr. Zheng has been appointed
as the member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, all with effect from July 26, 2024.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no material
subsequent events undertaken by the Group after the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this report.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date. The net proceeds received from the Global Offering (after
deducting the estimated underwriting commissions and other
fees and expenses payable by the Company in connection with
the Global Offering) was approximately HK$567.3 million.
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The following table sets forth the planned use and actual use of ~ NEREJIZRBERERIBFERNTEH

the net proceeds from the Global Offering: BEREBRRS :
Utilized Utilized
amount amount
Net from during the Expected
proceeds January 1, Unutilized  six months Unutilized timeline for
from the 2023 to amount as at ended  amount as fully utilizing
Global  December 31, January 1, June 30,  of June 30, the unutilized
Offering 2023 2024 2024 2024 amount"
HE20048
RRBE 202F1A1HE R20245 6A30A  BE2024F EHEA
FiB%E 2023512831A 1R18 AR 6A308 FURRER
Use of proceeds FERERE 38 CHRARE ABARE CHEARE  XHERE RiEmEE"

(HK$ million)  (HKS million)  (HKS$ million) ~ (HKS million) ~ (HKS$ million)
(ER®T)  (EREX) (BAERL) (SRER) (GRER)

To fund our research and AERDREA S 2876 809 2067 23 184.4 Before
development activities December 31, 2027
200712 A31 B3

For our sales and marketing ~ AREEREHED 1379 15.2 1227 114 113 Before
activities December 31, 2027
202712 A 31 Bl

To expand our production BREAEER 28.4 5.6 228 18 21.0 Before
capactty and strengthen our M EEEN December 31, 2027

manufacturing capabilities

20271231 AA
To fund potential strategic BEENERRE 56.7 - 56.7 132 435 Before
investments and acquisitions ~ RUEREES December 31, 2027
20271231 HA
For our working capital and ~ AIRNEBERR 56.7 - 56.7 - 56.7 Before
general corporate purposes  —RARER December 31, 2027
2027412 A31 A
Total ait 567.3 101.7 465.6 48,7 416.9
Note: PaE -

(1)  The expected timeline for fully utilizing the unutilized amount (1) R E) AR E A RIB R TE H

disclosed above is based on the best estimates made by the KREAXRDERESERBEEZEARER
Board pursuant to the latest available information up to the date BTSSR ERHE BV R EhET ©

of this report.
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As disclosed on pages 485 to 492 of the Prospectus, based on
the current business plan, the Company intended to implement
the use of proceeds from the Global Offering in the five financial
years from 2023 to 2027. The Board currently expects full
utilization of the net proceeds raised from the Global Offering
by December 31, 2027, subject to changes in light of the
Company’s evolving business needs and changing market
conditions.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules and the Company
has adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate
governance.

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for
the deviation from the below code provisions.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 in the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Ms. Chen Juan
is currently serving as the chairman of the Board as well as the
chief executive officer of the Company. She has been primarily
involved in developing overall corporate and business strategies
of our Group and making significant business and operational
decisions of our Group. The Directors consider that vesting the
roles of both the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company in Ms. Chen is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group by ensuring consistent leadership to
the Group as well as prompt and effective decision making
and implementation. In addition, the Directors believe that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company, given
that: (1) decision to be made by our Board requires approval by
at least a majority of our Directors; (2) Ms. Chen and the other
Directors are aware of and undertake to fulfil their fiduciary
duties as Directors, which require, among other things, that she
acts for the benefit and in the best interests of the Company
and will make decisions for the Company accordingly; (3) the
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations
of the Board, which consists of one executive Director, three
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, and has a fairly strong independence element; and
(4) the overall strategic and other key business, financial, and
operational policies of the Company are made collectively after
thorough discussion at both Board, and senior management
levels.
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The Board shall nevertheless review the structure and
composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding the transactions of securities of the Company by its
Directors, supervisors and the relevant employees who would
likely possess inside information of the Company. Specific
enquiry has been made to all Directors and supervisors of
the Company and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the six months ended
June 30, 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (chairwoman) and
Mr. Zheng Yufeng, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Zheng Guorui.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the unaudited interim
financial information of the Group for the six months ended June
30, 2024 together with the Group’s auditors, BDO China Shu
Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP, and have discussed
with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and its internal controls and financial
reporting matters.

SCOPE OF WORK OF BDO CHINA SHU LUN
PAN CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS LLP

The figures in respect of the Group’s unaudited interim financial
information and the related notes thereto for the six months
ended June 30, 2024 as set out in this report have been
reviewed by the Group’s auditor, BDO China Shu Lun Pan
Certified Public Accountants LLP.
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
#EORBERRE (L8) ROBRAR

Other Information

HibE R

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

By order of the Board
Chen Juan
Chairman and Executive Director

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
August 22, 2024
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Xinkuaishi Baozi [2024] No ZG12044

To Board of Directors of LEPU ScienTech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the attached interim financial statements
of LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,
including the consolidated and parent company’s balance
Sheets as at June 30, 2024, the consolidated and parent
company’s income statements, the consolidated and parent
company’s statements of cash flows, and the consolidated and
parent company’s statements of changes in owners’ equity,
and notes to the interim financial statements for the six months
ended June 30, 2024. It is the responsibility of the management
of LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. to
prepare the interim financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 32 — Interim Financial Reporting”, and our responsibility is
to issue a review report on the interim financial statements on
the basis of the implementation of the review work.

We performed the review work in accordance with the
provisions of “the China Certified Public Accountant Review
Standard No. 2101 - Review of Financial Statements”. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct review work to
obtain limited assurance as to whether the interim financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The review is
mainly limited to the interviews with the relevant personnel of
LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and
the implementation of analysis procedures on the financial data,
and the degree of assurance provided is lower than that of
the audit. We did not conduct the audit and therefore did not
express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, we have not noticed anything that would
lead us to believe that the above interim financial statements
have not been prepared in all material respects in accordance
with the provisions of “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 32 — Interim Financial Reporting”.

BDO CHINA Shu Lun Pan
Certified Public Accountants LLP
MEEHAEEMR (BHREESR)
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Certified Public Accountant of China: Wang Na
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Certified Public Accountant of China: Wang Ping
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Shanghai, China
hEe LiE

August 22, 2024
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EPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SLELRBEMNE (L8) ROEBRAA

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRErRIGERASN - REBEMHIBARET)

Assets

Current assets:

Cash at bank and on hand

Settlement reserve
Lending funds

Financial assets held-for-trading
Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Receivable financing
Prepayments

Insurance premium receivable

Reinsurance premium
receivable

Reserves for reassurance
contracts receivable

Other receivables

Financial assets purchased
under agreements to resell

Inventories

Including: Data resources

Contract assets
Assets held for sale

Non-current assets due within

one year
Other current assets

Total current assets

ITESRMEE
LS
FE YRR
AR RE
BANRE
EAIRE
FER D R

RBROREREFES

H it R
BEARESREE

i
B RIS AR
AREE

RERERE

—ERIMERBEE

HiRBEE

nBRESH

Note
B &

Va

VIZR

Vil

VI

X/

X+

As at June 30,
2024
2024%6A30H
(Unaudited)
(kiEERT)

1,144,150,461.38

171,601,780.81

73,216,367.46

23,703,078.05

2,278,934.48

73,022,269.63

3,769,560.67

As at December 31,
2023
2023%F12A31H
(Audited)

(#&E5T)

1,267,171,281.00

32,686,279.66

41,979,622.28

1,350,143.68

69,422,490.46

3,158,604.58

1,491,742,452.48

1,415,768,421.66




Assets

Non-current assets:
Loans and advances granted
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Long-term receivables
Long-term equity investments
Investments in other equity

instruments
Other non-current financial
assets

Investment properties
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Productive biological assets
Oil and gas assets
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Including: Data resources
Development expenses
Including: Data resources
Goodwill
Long-term deferred expenses
Deferred income tax assets
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

BE
FRBEE :

BMEFMBRK
ERRE
HiEERE
RHEAR
REBERE

HitEm TARE

HiERS e mEE

REMEME
Bl & E
EREIRE
KEMENEE
MREE
EREEE

B AE
Hep : BUREIR
FIE
Hep : BUREIR
Gk
EHGEER
BEREHEE
HitgEReEE

FRDHRESH

REMst
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Note
B &

XI+—
Xi+=

Xi+=

XIV+g

XV+Hh

The notes to the financial statements published on pages 57 to

100 are an integral part of the financial statements.

(BB RIEERS -

As at June 30,
2024
2024%6A30H
(Unaudited)
(kiEERT)

15,124,313.54
111,699,688.67
212,264.15

4,827,232.86
72,908,568.70

240,788,900.22
48,281,830.04
476,044.74
13,527,716.94
149,877,316.59

SREBMIGRARKT)

As at December 31,

2023
2023412 A31 A
(Audited)
(&E25T)

22,256,121.32
105,971,995.01
212,264.15

2,835,726.45
77,546,760.73

204,096,775.71
48,281,830.04
847,980.43
13,278,570.64
95,841,770.03

657,723,876.45

571,169,794.51

2,149,466,328.93

1,986,938,216.17

TIF N EE7 BEEE 100 BB M B MR Mt
R ERROEXEL S

P
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
4

KELFRBERENE (L8) ROBRAA

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRRrRIGERASN - BN BAR

Liabilities and owners’ equity

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

Loans from central bank

Placements from banks and
other financial institutions

Financial liabilities held-for-
trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Advances from customers

Contract liabilities

Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase

Deposits from customers and
interbanks

Receiving from vicariously
traded securities

Receiving from vicariously sold
securities

Employee benefits payable

Taxes payable

Other payables

Fee and commission payable

Reinsured accounts payable

Liabilities held for sale

Non-current liabilities due within
one year

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

¥IT)

BEMAAEED

mBAME -

2 HE K

AR RERTTHE R
wAESE

RPUEEBAE

TESRARE
LANES
FEfH R
U
aRAE

BEHOESREER

W W % e [R5 77 7

REEFEESFK
RIEAHE K

JE YBT3
EREE

Hi AR
BNFEENAS
R DRER
RAEFERE

—FRIHBERB ARG

HiRBAE

nBRARAH

Note
B &

XVI+75

XVII++

XVII+ 1
XIV+Ah
XX =+

As at June 30,
2024
2024%6A30H
(Unaudited)
(kiEERT)

12,603,125.83

18,619,287.80

9,203,460.81
24,335,319.88
198,562,168.93

2,010,439.73
509,294.80

As at December 31,
2023
2023%F12A31H
(Audited)

(#&FE5T)

18,876,454.29

12,593,113.83

6,800,957.29
10,163,127.91
9,051,099.01

1,381,236.54
364,876.36

265,843,097.78

59,230,865.23




Liabilities and owners’ equity

Non-current liabilities:

Reserve fund for insurance
contracts

Long-term borrowings

Bonds payable

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities

Long-term payable

Long-term employee benefits
payable

Estimated liabilities

Deferred income

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

BEMAAEED
FRBAME:

RER A FIEFS

RHER
&
Hep @5k

REEAR

£ HA A< T 5

BEtRE
B s
BEMERARE
HigEn®alE
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFRIGERASN - BN RBARKT)

As at June 30, As at December 31,

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Owners’ equity:
Share capital
Other equity instruments
Including: Preference shares
Perpetual bonds
Capital reserve
Less: Treasury shares
Other comprehensive income
Special reserve
Surplus reserve
Provision for general risks
Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the parent
company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The notes to the financial statements published on pages 57 to
100 are an integral part of the financial statements.

FRBRAAESH

A&
(LN
HitgEmTA
Hep @5k

X
RN
B ETER
HihR e Wk
EIHHRE
BHRAE
—RERER
ARDEHE
] ) SSYNG]

B ERE AR

S BRE S

RREERAH

REENAAEERELH

2024 2023

2024%6A30H 2023%F12A31H

Note (Unaudited) (Audited)
B & (kiEERT) (#&FE5T)
2,680,072.03 959,773.15

2,680,072.03 959,773.15

XX = +—

XXI=+=

268,523,169.81

60,190,638.38

346,749,997.00

1,320,758,552.91

213,434,609.21

1,880,943,159.12

346,749,997.00

1,309,143,939.67

270,853,641.12

1,926,747,577.79

1,880,943,159.12

1,926,747,577.79

2,149,466,328.93

1,986,938,216.17

TSN FEE7 BEFE 100 B H) I B R KM 5E
R BEHREROERE D

=
N
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
4

KELFRBERENE (L8) ROBRAA

Consolidated Income Statement

BOFRER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRErRIGERASN - REBEMHIBARET)

. Total operating income

Including: Operating income
Interest income
Premium earned
Income for handling charges and

commissions
Il Total operating costs

Including: Operating cost
Interest expense
Handling charges and commissions
Refunded premiums
Net amount of compensation payout
Net amount withdrawn for insurance

contract reserves
Policy dividend expense
Reinsured expenses
Taxes and surcharges
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Financial expenses
Including: Interest expenses
Interest income
Add: Other income

“

Investment income (loss expressed with )
Including: Income from investment in associates

and joint ventures

Gains from derecognition of financial
assets measured at amortised cost

Exchange gain (loss expressed with “-")
Net exposure hedging benefits
(loss expressed with *“-")
Gains from change in fair value
(loss expressed with *“-")
Loss on impairment of credit
(loss expressed with “-")
Loss on impairment of assets
(loss expressed with “-")
Gains from disposal of asset

“

(loss expressed with “-")

— EXEHA
He BXHA
HEMA
ERARE
FREELAZUA

= ERERA
He - BXRA
MExH
FRERRAExH
Rire
BXHFE
RERBAMERS IR

REAMZ I
HRER
me Rk
HEER
EEER
EER
HBER
U IS G
HEHA
e Etpli
B g (IR AT- 1 SRE5)

g
SLENAELENRERS

£ : 48
NERRA EHLRERAL
s

B St (1K IAT-155831)
MOl (B -5RE31)

MEERS N (BRI HEF])
{ERRERX (BRIAT-1E5])
BERBEX (BAUI-1REF])

BERE W (BANMI-|RE5])

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30AL @R
Note 2024 2023
(iR 20245 20235
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RERH) (Mmg3t)
249,100,148.65  166,351,313.28
XIZH= 249,100,148.65  166,351,313.28
82,605,713.46  86,407,427.58
XIZT= 22,430,274.82  18,618,024.69
2,819,277.61 2,459,960.67
XIVZT 31,485870.27  19,800,692.88
XXV=—tE 1841353552  20,683,588.19
XVIZTR 21,671,903.41  27,554,083.73
OVIZHE -14,125,14847  -2,798,902.58
85,408.45 95,326.91
13,278,075.95 5,817,140.07
953,389.05 122,094.85
2,056,166.79 5,593,455.95
1,601,780.81 404,876.72
VT -7,126,924.40 -262,190.47



U

Operating profit (loss expressed with “-*)

Add: Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expenses

Total profit (total loss expressed with “-")

Less: Income tax expense

Net profit (net loss expressed with *“-’)

() Classified by continuity of operations

1. Net profit from continuing operations
(net loss expressed with “-”)

2. Net profit from discontinued operations
(net loss expressed with “-”)

Classified by ownership

1. Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company
(net loss expressed with “-”)

2. Profit or loss attributable to non-controlling
interests (net loss expressed with “-”)

(I

Net other comprehensive income after tax

Net other comprehensive income after tax attributable

to shareholders of the parent company
() Other comprehensive income that may not be

subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

1. Change in remeasurement of defined
benefit plans

2. Share of other comprehensive income
accounted for using equity method that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss

3. Change in fair value of investments in other
equity instruments

4, Change in fair value of credit risks
of the Company

N
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Consolidated Income Statement

BOFRIER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFRIGERASN - BN RBARKT)

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30AL @R
Note 2024 2023
(iR 20245 20235
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (Mmg3t)
- e EME (BT 15E5) 163,888,847.44  85:802,122.75
e EEMEA 251,841.94 1,358,422.15
W EEM 3,478.52 52,542.92
+ FlERE (FRes - 5Es) 164,137,210.86  87,108,001.98
W ERER XXXZTA  23,008,744.48  11535:852.27
- EFIE OFEBIAT- 15085 140,228,466.38  75,572,149.71
(—) REEBERLE - =
1. ¥ J‘
AT -1 5RE5) 140,228,466.38  75,572,149.71
2. KiHE g/ﬂm
(FBEIUI-5ET) - =
(Z) EFrREREN S - =
1. BENIARREMEHE
(BB 5ER)
140,208,466.38  75,572,149.71
2. SERRER (FHEN-15%E7)
1 TRERHRTFE - =
EREAAMAEN LGS NENTETE
(—) TeENEEBRNEMRA NG
1. EFiEdTXa-Een8
2. BRETTHEEERNEMSANE

4 LRASERERAAEEE
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
4

KELFRBERENE (L8) ROBRAA

Consolidated Income Statement

BOFRER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRErRIGERASN - REBEMHIBARET)

(I)  Other comprehensive income that will be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
1. Share of other comprehensive income
accounted for using equity method that
will be reclassified to profit or loss
2. Change in fair value of other debt
investments
3. Amount of financial assets reclassified into
other comprehensive income
4. Provision for credit impairment of other
debt investments
5. Cash flow hedging reserve
6.  Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign currency financial
statements
7. Others
Net other comprehensive income attributable to non-
controlling interests after tax

VIl Total comprehensive income €

Total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the parent company

Total comprehensive income attributable to non-
controlling interests

VIl Earnings per share: o

() Basic earnings per share (RMB/share)
(I)  Diluted eamings per share (RMB/share)

The notes to the financial statements published on pages 57 to

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30AL @R
Note 2024 2023
(iR 20245 20235
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (Mmg3t)
(2) BENEEERNEMEANE
1. ERETUERRRNEMEANE
2. EEEREALEREE
3. SREEENEHSALM
LANENEE - _
4, EtMEEREERAEER
5. ReTEEHRE - -
6. INEBBRRITEES
7. Hft - -
SRRV ERRNEMGANENHETE
nElRER 140,228,466.38  75,572,149.71
SENSARFAENGRE MR EE
140,208,466.38  75,572,149.71
SENVERRN A hELEE
Bk - - =
(=) BRERRE (T/K) XXX=T 0.4044 0.2179
(2) BESRIE (T/R) XX=F 0.4044 02179

100 are an integral part of the financial statements. BEFERFTABERED o

TIE P EE7 B EE 100 B H) M B R Mt



Sub-tot

Sub-tot

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from sale of goods or rendering of
services

Net increase in deposits from customer and due from

bank and other financial institutions

Net increase in borrowings from central bank

Net increase in borrowings from other financial
institutions

Cash received from premium income from direct
insurance contracts

Net cash received from reinsurance business

Net increase in policyholders” deposits and
investments

Cash received from interests, handling charges and

commissions
Net increase in loans
Net increase in repurchase business

Net cash received from agency purchases and sales

of securities
Cash received from tax refund
Cash received relating to other operating activities
al of cash inflows from operating activities

Cash paid for goods and services
Net increase in loans and advances to customers

Net increase in central bank and interbank deposits

Cash paid for claims of direct insurance contracts

Net increase in lending funds

Cash paid for interests, handling charges and
commissions

Cash paid for the policy dividends

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Payments of taxes and surcharges

Cash paid relating to other operating activities

al of cash outflows from operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Sub-tot

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal of investments

Cash received from investment income

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Net cash received from the disposal of subsidiaries
and other business entities

Cash received relating to other investing activities

al of cash inflows from investing activities

Interim Report 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHEETRER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFRIGERASN - BN RBARKT)

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30AL @R
Note 2024 2023
EH i3 20245 20235
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RiEER) (BZ3t)
- EETHEEMRERE
HERD  REAEKENHES
237,746,131.90 175,875,963.50
REEFNREGRFEHE IS
W RIRITETUFIE N5 - =
FAEMEBEERAESFEINE
K BREEREFE - =
REFESRREFFENE
WEFE  FEELFeNES
FAESFEME - _
ERERESFENE - _
REEEEAMEINELFE
KEMRERE 14,936.07 =
WEEpELEEHEENES 8,279,194.86 6,161,839.68
EETHRE TN 246,040,262.83 182,037,803.18
BERM  BREESANHES 28,195,096.26 28,134,594.64
REES RS T FENE - _
ﬁﬂ$%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ¥ U FIE N - =
THERBARENZENES - =
ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁM@ - -
TS FEERALNES
SHREAFINES - =
INEBTURART S HHEE 37,431,078.51 36,078,076.41
XAREEHRE 39,290,919.77 37,007,877.73
THEMELEEHARNES 37,635,310.43 19,159,830.62
EEEHR SR 142,552,404.97 120,380,379.40
BETHELMALRERE 103,487,857.86 61,657,423.78

Z REFDEEMASRE
WEREWEGE S 405,521,824.46 1,276,702,571.38
RERERERINE S - =
Eﬁﬁiﬁﬁxﬁ%éﬁﬂﬁm

E%ﬁé%@mﬁiéﬁ 4,555,54 =
RETAAREMEEEMWEIM

ﬁ%/?@ - -

K EMEREEDERNRE - o

RERIRE TN 405,526,380.00 1,276,702,571.38
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EPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
#EORBERRE (L8) ROBRAR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRErRIGERASN - REBEMHIBARET)

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, intangible BRETEE  BMAEN

assets and other long-term assets A RBEELNNRE
Cash paid for investments RAZFRE
Net increase in pledged loans EWT\M@MH%E
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and other ~ FVE TR AR EMEE B L)
business units REFH
Cash paid relating to other investing activities SHAMEREEDAENSRS
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities RERHHERM )G
Net cash flows from investing activities REIDELNRLRESH
lIl. Cash flows from financing activities = ERIDELMERERE
Cash received from capital contributions e elliopen
Including: Cash received by subsidiaries from 2 FRERMD BRRIEE
receiving investments made by minority interest K3lrRe
Cash received from borrowings REETRENRE
Cash received relating to other financing activities Hﬂl IEtmEgEEHEBENTRS
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities SEEFREMAN G
Cash repayment of borrowings ERERLANRE
Cash payments for distribution of dividends, profits or D ELHRA - FBER TS
interest expenses SLf:ExA
Including: Dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries £ : FRRXMADHRRL
to non-controling interests TRa - B

Cash payments for other financing activities INEMESREDERNRS
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities SRR ML/ Gt

Net cash flows from financing activities ERERELNRQRERE

IV. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on - ERURHRERRSERINTE
cash and cash equivalents
V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents I ReRBESENIENE
Add: Beginning balance of cash and n: BRe AL ERMRE
cash equivalents
VI Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents 7+ HXRE&RALER ML

The notes to the financial statements published on pages 57 to
100 are an integral part of the financial statements.

Note
i3

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30AL @R
2024 2023
20245 20235
(Unaudited) (Audit\ed)
(RiEER) (MmZ3t)
31,001,867.00 29,833,733.00
605,537,600.00

1,163,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

636,539,467.00 1,212,833,733.00
-231,013,087.00 63,868,838.38
895,216.20 793,158.67
895,216.20 793,158.67
-895,216.20 -193,158.67
634,963.59 -2,908,533.00
-127,785,481.75 21,824,570.49
1,212,083,560.17 944,514,864.04
1,084,248,078.42 1,066,339,434.53

TIEHNES7BEEF 100 B BB SRR M 5
B BREROEKI S -
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)
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—E2-HR

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

—ECNFXFENBRRME

BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (referred to as “the Comany” or “the Group”) was
established as a joint-stock company in January 2021
and subsequently listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2022. As
an investment holding company, the Company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacturing
and sales of interventional treatment series occluders for
defective congenital heart disease (R84 48 K 15O MR
N ASEE X5 EH#2R) and the research and development
of biological valve (4 ¥ E) for heart disease.

As of June 30, 2024, the Company’s cumulative issued
share capital totaled 346,749,997 shares.

Social credit code of the Company: 91310000MA1FL7PF84.
Registered address of the Company: Room 201, Building
41, No. 258 Xinzhuan Road, Xingiao Town, Songjiang

District, Shanghai.

Parent company of the Company: Lepu Medical
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
#EORBERRE (L8) ROBRAR

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

—ECNFXFENBRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

_ﬁ_

BASIS OF PREPARATION FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1)

(2

Basis of preparation

The Group prepares financial statements on a going
concern basis, based on actual transactions and
events, in accordance with the relevant provisions
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 32 — Interim Financial Reporting issued by
the Ministry of Finance, as well as the disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The notes to the interim financial statements are
appropriately simplified relative to the notes to the
annual financial statements and do not include
all information and disclosures presented in the
annual financial statements. These interim financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements for the year 2023 prepared by
the Group.

Going concern

There are no material matters affecting the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, and there
are no material concerns about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in the next 12
months.

ZCHEHENRHER
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Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

—ECNFXFENBRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Statement of compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

These financial statements comply with the
requirements of the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance, and truly and completely reflect the
consolidated and parent company’s financial
position as of June 30, 2024, as well as the
consolidated and parent company’s operating
results and cash flows from January to June 2024.

Since its listing, the Group has been adopting
the International Financial Reporting Standards
generally adopted in Hong Kong for the preparation
of financial statements. In accordance with the
Consultation Summary on the Adoption of Mainland
Accounting and Auditing Standards and the
Engagement of Mainland Accounting Firms by
Mainland Incorporated Companies listed in Hong
Kong published by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in December 2010, the Group has decided to
prepare its financial statements in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and related requirements issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC with effect from the
current financial year. The impact of the change
from international accounting standards to PRC
accounting standards on the Group’s shareholders’
equity and net profit is as follows:

(Al amounts in RM

B Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BB SREMIRBARET)

= EE

(=)

Net profit
BR

For the For the

six months ended  six months ended

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

202451-6F 2023F1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(FEEH) (&%)
According to Chinese BOESHER

accounting standards 140,228,466.38 75,572,149.71
According to International  HREIR & &Rl

accounting standards - 76,095,580.67

Difference £8 - -523,430.96

B BR B & et Et

BREEES T ERNEH

ANEF TSR T A B RSP A8 4 Y
TESHENNER  BEFE -
SERMRE T AEE 202446
H30H®& ff &2 R B AR
MIAK 20244 1-6 BH& HF &
HRARKERRMRERE -

AEBBEH FHUR—BERXRBE
75 T iR R AN H B R B TS R A X
BRI ISR K o RIBEE B
LR 2010F12 A T HCA
A T EDE LT Ak
BAVA/NGIE = INEE = DR V==
SHERIA REERA A2 s
BT EARE) B IK
FERGE  ANEBRTEREH
BB B S AR Y I S AT 2E R
MR E R E®RE - A
B st ERE AR R e E
Bl % 7K 52 B A% 3R A o K% 1)

FEMT

Net assets
PEE

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024%E6A30R  2023%12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(FEEL) (%)
188,0943,159.12  1,926,747,577.79

1,926,675,345.63
72,232.16

(59)
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
#EORBERRE (L8) ROBRAR

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

_ﬁ_

—_— —

PO £ 3 5 B B IS SR MY =

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(2

(3)

(4)

(5)

Accounting period

The accounting period of the Group is from 1
January to 31 December of each calendar year.
This interim financial statements cover the period
from January 1 to June 30.

Operating cycle
The Group’s operating cycle is 12 months.
Reporting currency

The Group’s reporting currency is Renminbi
(“RMB").

Major accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of interim financial statements
requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the
presentation of the amounts of assets, liabilities
and gains and losses. According to the definition,
accounting estimates will very rarely be equivalent
to the relevant actual results. In the preparation of
the interim financial statements, the major sources
of significant judgment and estimated uncertainties
made by management in the application of
the Group’s accounting policies are consistent
with those applied in the 2023 annual financial
statements.

= - BRI RRR EEHER (1)

(=)

(=)
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—ECNFXFENBRRME

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BB SREMIRBARET)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

= - BRI RRR EEHER (1)

(R) EEEHBRENE AN

(6) Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates 5
1. Changes in significant accounting policies 1 BEESHHEEE
(1) Implementation of the /nterpretation No. (1) T EDTE

17 of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

On October 25, 2023, the Ministry of
Finance promulgated the /nterpretation
No. 17 of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises (Cai Kuai [2023]
No. 21, hereinafter referred to as
“Interpretation No. 177).

On the division of current liabilities and
non-current liabilities, Interpretation No.
17 clarifies:

- If an enterprise does not have
the substantive right to defer the
settlement of liabilities to more than
one year after the balance sheet
date at the balance sheet date, the
liabilities should be classified as
current liabilities.

AIEEEAT7R)

B BUEB R 2023 F
10 H25 B A T
(¥ gt &8 7
BE17%) (e
[2023]21 58 » A
TR [ RIEEA7
R1) e

ARRBaERIE
mBABENE D -
FREESET SR EANE

- XEBESR
BRERER
BEBERE
EEERER
BR—FNLE
E SRR
B ZAERE
ERERRY
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
#EORBERRE (L8) ROBRAR

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

—ECNFXFENBRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

Ill. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES = -EESHBRR S ()
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(6) Changes in significant accounting policies and (R) EEGHBEME AT HE
accounting estimates (Continued) E(#&|)
1. Changes in significant accounting policies 1 EBEZESHFREE(E)
(Continued)
(1) Implementation of the /nterpretation No. (1) T ESFTE

17 of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (Continued)

On the division of current liabilities and
non-current liabilities, Interpretation No.
17 clarifies: (Continued)

- For liabilities arising from a
corporate loan arrangement, the
right of an enterprise to defer the
repayment of liabilities to more
than one year after the balance
sheet date may depend on whether
the enterprise has complied with
the conditions set out in the loan
arrangement (hereinafter referred
to as the contractual conditions),
and in determining whether the
enterprise has a substantial
right to defer the repayment of
debts, it should only consider
the contractual conditions to be
followed on or before the balance
sheet date, and should not
consider the contractual conditions
that the enterprise should follow
after the balance sheet date.

AEBE175R)
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—F—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(6) Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

1. Changes in significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(1) Implementation of the /nterpretation No.
17 of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (Continued)

On the division of current liabilities and
non-current liabilities, Interpretation No.
17 clarifies: (Continued)

- When dividing the liquidity of
liabilities, the liquidation of
liabilities refers to the release of
liabilities by the transfer of cash,
other economic resources (such
as goods or services) or the
enterprise’s own equity instruments
to the counterparty. If the terms of
the liabilities cause the enterprise
to be repaid by the delivery of
its own equity instruments at the
option of the counterparty, if the
enterprise classifies the above
options as equity instruments and
recognizes them separately as
equity components of composite
financial instruments in accordance
with the provisions of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 37 — Presentation of Financial
Instruments, the provision does not
affect the liquidity division of the
liability.

(B REFREERASDN

“HFEFFEMBRRME

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

—ECNFXFENBRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

= - BRI RRR EEHER (1)

(R) EEEHBRENE AN

(6) Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

1. Changes in significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(1)

Implementation of the /nterpretation No.
17 of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (Continued)

On the division of current liabilities and

% (#)

1. EESHBFELE (F)

(1)

HATCRE ML
BBBEITH)
()

ARnBaERIE
mE A B E

\|

non-current liabilities, Interpretation No. @B -

17 clarifies: (Continued) FRIESE 17 SR RARE -
(&)

The interpretation will come into force on ZERREHE 52024

January 1, 2024, and enterprises shall F1 /1 HEEMIT -

adjust the information for comparable EEHRNRAITZ

periods in accordance with the
interpretation when implementing the

RERTER  EBE
RRZEERTESH

interpretation for the first time. AL HARE (S BT
The implementation of this provision HATZREARE A
has not had a material impact on the & B B 75 iR 50 A A
Group’s financial position and operating EXREEBERNY

results.

@,
=



Interim Report 2024
—E2-HR

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

—ECNFXFENBRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(6) Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

1. Changes in significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2

Implement the /nterim Provisions on
Accounting Treatment Related to
Enterprise Data Resources

On August 1, 2023, the Ministry of
Finance issued the /Interim Provisions
on the Accounting Treatment Related
to Enterprise Data Resources (Cai
Kuai [2023] No. 11), which applies to
data resources that are recognized
as intangible assets or inventories in
accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, as well as data
resources legally owned or controlled by
enterprises that are expected to bring
economic benefits to the enterprise, but
do not meet the conditions for asset
recognition and are not recognized, and
put forward specific requirements for the
disclosure of data resources.

The provisions come into force on
January 1, 2024, and enterprises should
adopt the future applicable method, and
the expenses related to data resources
that have been expensed into profit or
loss before the implementation of the
provisions will not be adjusted.

The implementation of this provision
has not had a significant impact on the
Group’s financial position and operating
results.

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BB SREMIRBARET)
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LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
#EORBERRE (L8) ROBRAR

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

—ECNFXFENBRRME

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

Ill. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES = -EESHBRR S ()
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(6) Changes in significant accounting policies and (R) EEGHBEME AT HE
accounting estimates (Continued) E(#&|)
1. Changes in significant accounting policies 1 EBEZESHFREE(E)
(Continued)
(3) Reclassification of warranty expenses B) KREHREREHRE
Pak.
In March 2024, the Ministry of Finance B AR 20244 3
issued the Compilation of Guidance on ABEHBT(EES
the Application of Accounting Standards HAERIE A iE e
for Business Enterprises 2024, which #2024) « BER
stipulates that warranty expenses should BEERERAES
be included in operating costs. ANEFEH o
The implementation of this provision HATZ R EARE AR
has not had a significant impact on the & B B 75 1R 50 A AR
Group’s financial position and operating EXNREEERNY
results. 2.
2. Changes in significant accounting estimates 2. BEZI G E
Not applicable. i3
IV. TAX M- RRA
(1) Major types of taxes and rates (—) EEHEMBIE
Type Tax basis Tax rate (%)
TiiE ST 12 (%)
VAT The VAT payable is the difference between output tax (calculated

based on sales of goods and taxable service income under the
tax laws) and the deductible input tax of the period
BEH BRER T ENHEEMMER S B RARER T EHARR
ENGE B EMaERRRER - ZEHD REIEER 5.6+ 13
Urban maintenance and Based on value-added tax and consumption tax paid
construction tax
VAT 4 R R A RERGMEIZERFOEBH A 5.7
Enterprise income tax Based on taxable profits
EEEH R P IS B ET 8K 15+ 25



IV. TAX

(1)

(2

ltem BH

Cash on hand EfFHe

Bank deposits IRITIFR

Other monetary funds EmEKES

Total &t

Including: Cash at bank and on  HM : FHIERINIFKIABER

Interim Report 2024
—E2-HR

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

—ECNFXFENBRRME

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BB SREMIRBARET)

(Continued)
Major types of taxes and rates (Continued)

Companies subject to different enterprise income
tax rates are disclosed as follows:

Name of tax payer M EREEE
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy
Co., Ltd.

Tax incentives

In December 2023, Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, was
approved and recognized as a high-tech enterprise
by the Science and Technology Commission of
Shanghai Municipality, the Shanghai Municipal
Finance Bureau, and the Shanghai Taxation
Bureau of the State Taxation Administration with
a certificate number of “GR202331006835” and a
validity period of three years. In 2024, it will enjoy
the preferential tax policy of 15% income tax rate
for high-tech enterprises.

CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND

hand deposited

overseas
Amounts deposited FEREEINEESER
abroad with 25 Rl B 508

restrictions on
repatriation of funds

M - R ()

(=)

EEERERaEMHBRAT

(=)

ERHENH R (H)

TFHE R AT S BB R A
TR WEBRHA

Tax rate (%)
PRASBH % (%)

15
BIKERE

ARARMT AR _EBHMEIE
A& MEARAAR2023F
12AWEEMBERNZE
g EEBTMWERE - BRHRB
BRHEBMHGE B ERE
REIEMEsE  BERR
[GR202331006835 | * B %A
B o 2024 F Z i F R
PEAMEHRER15%ME
IR B ERHUR -

i -R¥EHER
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
20246 A30H 2023412H31H8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RIEER) (& 5T)
9,848.12 9,848.12

1,144,140,613.26

1,267,161,432.88

1,144,150,461.38

1,267,171,281.00

(67)
N\



(68)
&)

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SLELRBEMNE (L8) ROEBRAA

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

CECNFEXFEHEHRRMEE

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

VI. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD-FOR-TRADING

ltem HH
Financial assets at fair value LAREBEFEAHEZESH:TA
through profit or loss EHEENeREE
Including: Wealth management Hr : 3812 R
products
Total &t
Vil. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

1. Ageing analysis of accounts receivable

N XHUEMEE

Ageing AR ES

Within 1 year 1F AR

1-2 years 15224

2-3 years 2FE3F

3-4 years 3F44F

4-5 years AFEHF

Over 5 years 5FAE
Sub-total NEF

Less: Provision for bad debts AR
Total a5t

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
202456 A30H 2023412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(KiEFEsH) (£
171,601,780.81 -
171,601,780.81 -
171,601,780.81 -
+  [BURRRR
1 BEWRFIZRERRIEE
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024fF6A30H 2023412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(kRi&FEsT) (T
82,943,017.08 36,322,324.40
990,300.01 311,693.93
322,525.78 63,431.86
64,230.00 11,630.30
14,192.65 25,822.65
3,927,386.00 3,915,756.30
88,261,651.52 40,650,659.44
15,045,284.06 7,964,379.78

73,216,367.46

32,686,279.66

Note: The Group generally does not offer any official
contractual credit terms to its customers and will
closely monitor the settlement pattern of respective
customers. For certain individual customers with
long-term relationship with the Group and have
good credit history in the past, the Group may
allow them to settle the related receivable balances
within a discretionary period ranging from 30 days
to 360 days.

HEE AEERETERER
FREAWEXANEES
R TR EREERENS
EER - HREAEEF K
BERABBEEERER THE
FRE  NEBAAHZER
F#A30HZE360H N5 ERE
JE UG FRIE 4 4 o
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HEHE 4R [y B
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Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

VIII. PREPAYMENTS

1. Ageing of prepayments

Ageing BRIk
Within 1 year 1EAR
1-2 years 15824
2-3 years 283F
Over 3 years 3FEMU
Total aat

IX. OTHER RECEIVABLES

[tem

Interest receivable
Dividends receivable
Other receivables

Total

1.  Other receivables

(1)

Ageing analysis

Ageing

Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 years

Over 5 years

Sub-total

Less: Provision for bad debts

Total

I\ FRFRIEA
1 FERARERERYITR
As at June 30, 2024 As at December 31, 2023
2024568300 2023%F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REET) (R&E5T)
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 (%) k- L6 1l(%)
21,512,572.69 90.76  30,645,327.44 73.00
1,194,597.62 5.04 10,922,181.68 26.02
685,408.74 2.89 84,036.16 0.20
310,499.00 1.31 328,077.00 0.78
23,703,078.05 100.00 41,979,622.28 100.00
- HtuEUR R
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
202456308 2023%12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HE (REEE) (f&z=5t)
JE IR 2, - -
JRE i s ) - -
Ho At e W RIE 2,278,934.48 1,350,143.68
it 2,278,934.48 1,350,143.68
1 HtEWFIE
(1) ZEREIRFE

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 6A30H 2023F12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
iR (RAEEE) (&)
1ELA 935,081.50 79,456.82
13226 113,711.62 54,195.37
2FE3F 699,215.31 648,961.32
3E4E 26,077.00 60,393.00
4B5F 93,732.00 50,000.00
5FP 714,888.35 714,888.35
et 2,582,705.78 1,607,894.86
R 303,771.30 257,751.18
&t 2,278,934.48 1,350,143.68
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

S

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

X.

INVENTORIES

1.

Breakdown of inventories

Type
Raw materials

Work in progress
Finished goods

Total

B3l
R

kEm
ERHR

ait

+ S #45
1 FESE
As at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited) As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)
2024%6F 308 (RiEHI) 2023512 R31R (£%t)

Provision for Provision for

Book impairment of impairment of
balance inventories  Carrying value  Book balance inventories  Carrying value
BERE HFRERER EEfEE FERE  REKEEE FHEE
34,854,111.65 - 34,854,111.65  30,466,258.57 - 30,466,258.57
17,080,404.98 - 17,080,404.98  17,679,159.20 - 17,679,159.20
21,087,753.00 - 21,087,753.00  21,277,072.69 - 21,277,072.69
73,022,269.63 - 73,022,269.63  69,422,490.46 - 69,422,490.46




Interim Report 2024
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Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

Xl. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

[tem

1. Original carrying amount
(1) As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)
(2) Increase during this period
- Purchase
(8) Decrease during this period
- Transfer to fixed assets
(4) As at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited)
2. Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
(1) As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)
(2) Increase during this period
— Provision made or
amortization
(3) Decrease during this period
- Transfer to fixed assets
(4) As at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited)
3. Provision for impairment
(1) As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)
(2) Increase during this period
- Provision made
(3) Decrease during this period
- Disposals
(4) As at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited)
4. Carrying value
(1) Net book value at June 30, 2024
(Unaudited)
(2) Net book value at
December 31, 2023 (Audited)

—==

“HFEFFEMBRRME

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BREFIRFIRRSN - @B RARET)
- REREE
Buildings Total
e BEREEY s
1. RERE

(1) 2023%12A31H (&=&zT)
(2) AL
— SN
Q) AfR L%
-BAETEE
(4) 202456 A308 (REE:T)
2. REMEMRA#EH

(1) 2023% 12 A31H (&&:T)
(2) REREMEE
— FHRSE R

(3) AHRLSHE
-BABTEE
(4) 2024F6 8300 (KEE:)
3. REERE
(1) 2023%12A31 8 (&=&F:t)
(2) AEEMEEE

27,159,017.54

8,677,828.62
8,577,828.62
18,581,188.92

4,902,896.22
220,651.62

220,651.62
1,666,672.46
1,666,672.46
3,456,875.38

27,159,017.54

8,577,828.62
8,677,828.62
18,5681,188.92

4,902,896.22
220,651.62

220,651.62
1,666,672.46
1,666,672.46
3,456,875.38

XIl.

1.

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets and disposal of fixed assets

ltem

Fixed assets
Fixed assets liquidation

Total

— &g
Q) AERLLHE
-RE
(4) 202456 A308 (KEHE:)
4. REEMA
(1) 2024%6 A30REEAEEE
(RECERT) 15,124,313.54  15,124,313.54
(2) 2023F12H31AEHEEE
(1&5T) 22,256,121.32  22,256,121.32
t2 EERE
1 EEEERECEERE
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024 6A30H 20234 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
THH (RAEEE) ($&E)
BEEBE 111,699,688.67 105,971,995.01
BEEERE - -

&kt

111,699,688.67

105,971,995.01

(73)
N
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(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

XIl. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

2.

Breakdown of fixed assets

R

QOriginal carrying amount 1.

(1

@

@

As at December
31,2023
(Audited)

Increase during
this period

- Purchases

- Transfers from

investment
properties

Decrease during
this period

- Disposal or

retirement

As at June 30,
2024 (Unaudited)

Accumulated
depreciation

(1)

@

@

As at December
31,2023
(Audited)

Increase during
this period

- Provision made

- Transfers

from investment
properties

Decrease during
this period

- Disposal or

retirement

As at June 30,
2024 (Unaudited)

Provision for impairment

(1

@

]

@

As at December
31,2023
(Audited)

Increase during
this period

- Provision made

Decrease during
this period

- Disposal or

retirement

As at June 30,
2024 (Unaudited)

Carrying value

(1)

@

Net book value at
June 30, 2024
(Unaudited)

Net book value
at December 31,
2023 (Audited)

2

3.

4

FHRE

)

B

@

2023412R31H
(i)

KBNS E

-kE

- &Mk
BHEEA

-RELHE

20246 A30A
(REE:)

ZifE

U)

@

2235 12R31 B
(i)

I

-3

- it
G

1AL

- KEIHR

2024%6330H
(R%:)

AEER

)

@

@

202312R31H
(i)

KBNS E

-3t
1548

-RELHE

20246 A30A
(REE:)

FHEE

)

@

202456 A30R
FERE
(ReEE)

20512318
KEEE
(i)

Buidings
REREEN

87,939,751.35

8,577,628.62

8,577,828.62

96,517,679.97

20,338,175.61

2,798,208.35
1,131,536.89

1,666,672.46

23,136,383.96

73,381,196.01

67,601,675.74

Machinery and
equipment

BERG

51,383,485.63

2,576,223.14
2,576,223.14

53,969,708.77

15,454,190.72

2,297,623.92
2,297,623.92

17,751,814.64

36,207,894.13

35,929,204.91

2 EERE ()

2

Transportation
vehicle
EHTA

2,333.970.77

2,333.970.77

1,086,966.11

113,884.56
113,884.56

1,679870.67

654,100.10

767,984.66

BEE&EERBR

Electronic
equipment Others
BHaE A
2,344,449.20  2,603,205.76
1411050  29976.71
1411050  29976.71
39,920.28 569.80
39,920.28 569.80
2318,639.42  2,632,612.67
1,651,263.87  1,623,251.39
13317764 12498508
18317764 12498508
3792401 -
37,924.07 =
1,746517.04  1,748,236.42
51212218 884,376.25
693,185.33  979,954.37

Total
&

146,604,862.71
11,196,138.97
2,620,310.36
8,577,828.62
40490.08
40,490.08

167,762,511.60

40,632,867.70
5,467,879.50
3,801,207.04
1,666,672.46
3792421
37,924.27

46,062,822.93

111,699,688.67

105,971,995.01




XIII.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ltem

1,

2.
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(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BB SREMIRBARET)

Original carrying amount

(1)

As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)

Increase during this period
- Purchase
Decrease during this period
- Disposal

As at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited)

Accumulated amortization

(1)

As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)

Increase during this period
- Provision made

Decrease during this period
- Disposal

As at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited)

Provision for impairment

(1)

As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)

Increase during this period
- Provision made

Decrease during this period
- Disposal

As at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited)

Carrying value

(1) Net book value at June 30, 2024

(2) Net book value at December 31, 2023

(Unaudited)

(Audited)

HH

1.

FERE

(1) 2028F12/318
(=)

Q) AEENEE
-BE

Q) AERLEE
-RE

(4) 202468308
(REZEE)

2ErEE

(1) 2023%F12/31H
(B=&:T)

Q) AEENEE
—&The

Q) AERLEE
-RE

(4) 202468308
(REZEH)

REREE

(1) 2023%128318
(8=&:)

Q) AEENEE
— iR

() FERILHE
-RE

(4) 2024%6H8308
(REZE:)

FEEE

(1) 2024%6H8308
FRERE(REEN)

(2) 2023%F12A31H
ERERE (K8

Note: As at the end of the period, the intangible assets
generated from the Group’s internal research and
development accounted for 88.49% of the balance of
intangible assets.

S EBEE

Patent rights
27

97,376,638.74

97,376,638.74

20,326,178.98
4,592,580.99
4,592,580.99

24,918,759.97

72,457,878.77

77,050,459.76

Others
Hity

695,406.37

695,406.37

199,105.40
45,611.04
45,611.04

244,716.44

450,689.93

496,300.97

Total

Az
=

98,072,045.11

98,072,045.11

20,525,284.38
4,638,192.03
4,638,192.03

25,163,476.41

72,908,568.70

77,546,760.73

S REFEETREAKE
NEF RN B EER BT E

EFREBAYEL{588.49% °

&
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(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

XIV.GOODWILL +H e
Increase Decrease
during this during this

As at period period As at

December 31, AERE 0 RE R June 30,

2023  Formation of 2024

2023 business 2024

12H31H combinations Disposal 6A30H

Investee Companies or W BB A (Audited) PEESH (Unaudited)

matters forming goodwill R EENEE (& &aT) i2%:0) BE (REEET)

Original carrying amount RARE = - - -
Shanghai Shape Memory LBEHZEES

Alloy Co., Ltd. MEBERAR 48,281,830.04 - - 48,281,830.04

Sub-total et 48,281,830.04 - - 48,281,830.04

Provision for impairment AR = - - -

Sub-total Nt - - - -

Book value BEEE 48,281,830.04 - - 48,281,830.04

. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS i HMiERENEE
As at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited) As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)
2024568308 (RHEHi) 2023% 12318 (M%)
Provision of Provision of
Book balance impairment ~ Carrying value Book balance impairment ~ Carrying value
Item 2R FEisE HEER FERE BHRE AL HEEME
Prepald project paymentand BRI

equipment payment B 1,173,335.54 - 1,173,335.54 532,879.62 = 532,879.62

Large certificate of deposit AERE 128,703,981.05 - 128,703,981.05  95,308,890.41 - 95,308,890.41

Others K 20,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00 - - -

Total L 149,877,316.59 - 149,877,316.59  95,841,770.08 - 9584177003
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(BB SREMIRBARET)

XVI.ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1 ER®R

Breakdown of accounts payable

1 BENERXKIITR

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

2024%6A30A 2023412A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

ltem JEH €3¢ Hl (fe&at)
Within one year 1R 11,640,993.38 17,387,701.17
1-2 years 1-24F 18,607.93 1,341,821.54
2-3 years 2-3F 796,592.94 -
Over 3 years SEHE 146,931.58 146,931.58
Total & 12,603,125.83 18,876,454.29

SEA HERETAEENE
EHINMMNB0AE120K °

Note: Credit periods granted to the Group by
suppliers range from 30 days to 120 days.

XVIl. CONTRACT LIABILITIES +t - aR&R
1. Breakdown of contract liabilities 1 AEEBER
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024%6H30H 202312 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem HH (RiEEH) (fm2st)
Within one year 1EAR 18,619,287.80 12,593,113.83
1-2 years 1-2F - -
2-3 years 2-3%F - -
Over 3 years SEIE - -

Total

it 18,619,287.80

12,593,113.83
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

XVIl. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE +\ « BE £ 1% T 57 A
1. Breakdown of employee benefits payable 1 EABRIESFMYIR
As at As at
December 31, Increase Decrease June 30,
2023 during the during the 2024
2023F12A31A period period  2024%6A30A
(Audited) (Unaudited)
ltem B (&53) REE AERD (REFH)
Short-term remuneration RHEH 6,800,057.09  36,714,766.72  34,315,692.20 9,200,031.81
Post-employment benefits - BB R -
defined contribution plans REtefE - 304694611 3,043517.11 3,429.00
Termination benefits BHRARA - - - -
Other benefits due within one year —ERFBNEHEN - - - -
Total ait 6,800957.29  39,761,712.83  37,359,200.31 9,203,460.81
2. Breakdown of short-term remuneration 2 SHAHMLIR
As at As at
December 31, Increase Decrease June 30,
2023 during the during the 2024
2023124318 period period  2024%6A308
(Audited) (Unaudited)
ltem g (&) RBEN TERED (REFH)
(1) Salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies (1) TI&- %% 2HA
R 6,715,284.29  33,039,821.83  30,642,553.78 9,112,552.34
(2)  Employee benefis 0 BIRHE 43907085 439,070.35
(3 Social insurance contribution (3 HERRE 176700114 1,765,194.67 1,806.47
Including: Medical insurance contribution Hh: BERRE 172695406 172531259 1,641.47
Work-related injury insurance contribution IBRBE 35,179.64 35,064.64 115.00
Maternity insurance contribution TRRRE 4,867.44 4,817.44 50.00
(4)  Housing provident fund o FEARE 8567300  1,451,111.00  1,451,111.00 85,673.00
(5)  Labour union & employee education funds () I&HEA
BIYERE 17,762.40 17,762.40
(6) Short-term paid absences 6) BEEEHRY
(7) Short-term profit sharing schemes (7 EEFEIZHE

Total ait 6,800957.29  36,714,766.72  34,315,692.20 9,200,031.81
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(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(Continued)

XVil. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE

3. Breakdown of defined contribution plans

[tem
Basic pension insurance

Unemployment insurance contribution
Contributions to enterprise pensions

Total

XIX.TAXES PAYABLE

Tax items

Value-added tax

Enterprise income tax

Individual income tax

City maintenance and construction tax
Educational surcharge

Local educational surcharge

Stamp tax

Total

HH
EXRZRR

RERRE
TLXFEHE

&t

(B REFREERASDN

T\ EMARI&HH (8)

SRBMH/ARET)

3 RERFEIR

As at As at
December 31, Increase Decrease June 30,
2023 during the during the 2024
2023F12A31H period period  2024F6A30H
(Audited) (Unaudited)
(&) ARERSE N KER D (RIEEET)
- 2,952,843.19  2,949,547.19 3,296.00
- 94,102.92 93,969.92 133.00
- 3,046,946.11  3,043,517.11 3,429.00

Th BXRE
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 6A30H 2023%12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HMEIEE (kRigEFst) (EEE)
Z2EH 7,572,136.85 1,858,480.52
TEMER 15,978,232.89 7,588,459.15
(EPNzIEET 225,948.78 381,312.58
T AR R 279,497.26 117,356.33
HEBHM 167,698.32 70,413.76
5B BT 111,798.92 46,942.55
ENTERE 6.86 100,163.02
at 24,335,319.88 10,163,127.91

@)
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

XX. OTHER PAYABLE —t HMERRR
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
202456 A30H 2023F12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem A (RiEE) (&)
Interest payable JET RIS - =
Dividends payable JEE -t R ) 194,774,440.76 =
Other payable H b e 30E 3,787,728.17 9,051,099.01
Total it 198,562,168.93 9,051,099.01
1. Dividends payable 1 EARF
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
20245%E6HA30H 2023F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem HE (RiEER) (&E:T)
Dividends for ordinary shares AR AR A 194,774,440.76 -
Total a5t 194,774,440.76 -
2.  Other payable 2. HibpE{tshE
(1) Other payable by nature (1) B EMEEZ R
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024%£6A30H 2023F12AH31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem EE (RiEE) (&)
Guarantee deposit RiEE 64,800.00 64,800.00
Current payments R 2,890,794.91 8,416,671.42
Others Hith 832,133.26 569,627.59
Total &t 3,787,728.17 9,051,099.01
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(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BB SREMIRBARET)
- BF

Increase (+) or decrease (-) during the period

RO ()

As at As at
December 31, June 30,
2023 Issuance of Bonus  Conversion 2024
2023F128318  new shares issuance  from reserve Others Sub-total 20244 6A30R
(Audited) (Unaudited)
ltem BB (fE55) B1Hk R DERER Eftr Nt (FEE)
Total number R
of shares 346,749,997.00 - - - - - 346,749,997.00
XXIl. CAPITAL RESERVE T BELE
As at As at
December 31, Increase Decrease June 30,
2023 during the during the 2024
2023%12A31H period period 2024%6R30A
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Item ER (&) REEM KRS (REEEH)
Shares premium RARE 1,615,010,764.59 - - 1,615,010,764.59
Other capital reserve At EARTE -305,866,824.92  11,614,613.24 - -294,252,211.68
Total &t 1,309,143,939.67  11,614,613.24 - 1,320,758,552.91
XXlll. OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING TEERERAMEBERSF
COST
1. Breakdown of operating income and operating 1. BEEURAMNMEERKEBER
cost

[tem

Principal business
Other businesses

Total

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30A1L~ER
2024 2023

2024 20234

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RIEEH) (lg&:)
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
HH KA BE WA KA
FEER 248,790,984.67  22,209,623.20 165,933,694.64  18,392,573.07
Hitn 7% 309,163.98 220,651.62 417,618.64 225,451.62

ait 249,100,148.65  22,430,274.82 166,351,313.28  18,618,024.69

&)
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

XXIll. OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING

COST (Continued)

2. Information on the breakdown of operating
income and operating costs

ltem R

Classification by product: BREME

Congenital heart disease EREDRR
occluder products HERED

Pathway products BAEER

Patent foramen ovale and left atrial - SIEIFLARE R
appendage occluder products ELEMEEER

Others Aty

Total At

XXIV. SELLING EXPENSES

[tem

Labor costs

Business entertainment fees
Travel and transportation fees
Market fees

Exhibition fees

Business promotion fees
Share-based payment

Office expenses

Depreciation expenses
Others

Total

SHEERBAMEREE (])

2. ERWA - BERENDEBRE
2

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30H L ER
2024 2023

20245 20234

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (B3t
Operation Operating Operation Operating
income costs income costs
BREEA EXRE BEIA BERA
128,570,233.84  7,728,049.14  125184,554.11 7,821,399.05
40,346,197.08  11,368,559.76  33,777,900.85  9,080,667.13
79,763,191.28  3,090,256.46  6,317,036.15  1,470,195.85
420,526.45 243,409.46 571,822.17 245,762.66
249,100,148.65  22,430,274.82 166,351,313.28  18,618,024.69

TR SHEEH
Six months ended June 30,
#F6A30HILNER

2024 2023
2024 20234
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HE (REFET) € &5
AILER 17,681,764.76 9,531,453.72
EBKRGE 3,021,251.77 2,431,137.48
ERRBE 2,788,415.45 1,987,586.93
Mg 2,036,897.41 1,036,519.43
2EE 1,994,560.13 2,283,322.29
EBKEHEE 1,585,467.12 968,110.63
Betn 245 1,113,569.60 821,324.16
WAE 20,636.43 52,687.65
heEs 18,721.23 32,950.87
Htt 1,224,586.37 745,599.72
it 31,485,870.27 19,890,692.88
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(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(BB SREMIRBARET)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

ltem

Labor costs

Share-based payment

Consulting service fees
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Property rental fees

Travel and transportation expenses
Office expenses

Auditor’s remuneration

Business entertainment fees
Water, electricity and heating
Others

Total

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

EXPENSES

ltem

Labor costs
Materials, power and

manufacturing inspection fees
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Design and clinical trial fees
Outsourced research and

development expenses
Share-based payment
Others

Total

i EERER
Six months ended June 30,
#E6A30R1L~<ER

2024 2023
2024 20234
(Unaudited) (Audited)
1HH (FRiEERT) (£EE)
ATLER 6,291,240.85 5,297,264.68
f& 15 3 4+ 4,943,363.50 6,672,032.42
ARG E 2,785,853.41 5,540,927.13
E#HEE 849,801.00 810,627.22
VEFEHE 379,223.20 415,970.22
ERRBE 363,740.64 205,107.45
WRE 338,155.74 315,577.24
1% B 257 B 330,188.68 900,000.00
XBHEEE 106,608.03 86,561.62
KB BB 98,965.76 185,020.59
HA 1,926,394.71 254,499.62
&t 18,413,535.52  20,683,588.19

StnARRA

Six months ended June 30,

#E6H30R1L~EA

2024 2023

20244 20234

(Unaudited) (Audited)

THH (KREEET) (=)

ATER 5,093,036.07 7,586,025.92

MRBH K

FERRE 8,837,241.90 9,694,217.67

WEHHEE 2,194,634.32 2,202,562.83

HET MEEARABRE 465,939.65 1,715,611.18
ZETINERAEE B A

273,226.94 162,000.68

I = A+ 1,956,618.93 2,958,217.69

Hith 2,851,205.60 3,235,427.76

a5t 21,671,903.41

27,554,063.73

(83)
&
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(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

Deferred income tax expenses

TS T E -249,146.30

XXVI. FINANCIAL EXPENSES Tt MEEH
Six months ended June 30,
#F6H30HILEA
2024 2023
2024 ¢ 20234
(Unaudited) (Audited)
BH (FR#EERT) (#&2&5T)
Interest expenses FMEER 85,408.45 95,326.91
Including: Interest expenses for lease liabilities 7 : FAE & &
B EH 85,408.45 95,326.91
Less: Interest income B FEWA 13,278,075.95 5,817,140.07
Net exchange gains or losses W B -982,533.23 2,882,532.64
Handling charges FEBSLH 50,052.56 40,377.94
&t -14,125,148.17 -2,798,902.58
XXVI.LLOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF CREDIT StNEHRERSE
Six months ended June 30,
B FE6HA30HILREA
2024 2023
2024 20234
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem IEH (FREEE) (&25T)
Loss on bad debts of accounts receivable FEUBR FUZBRIB 2K 7,080,904.28 242 ,992.59
Loss on bad debts of other receivables H b e IR ERIB K 46,020.12 19,197.88
Total a&t 7,126,924.40 262,190.47
XXIX.INCOME TAX EXPENSE thWFRBRER
Six months ended June 30,
#iF¥6A30HI1NEA
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HE (RiEEE) (BZE5T)
Current income tax expenses EHIFTSHER 24,157,890.78 12,713,999.89

-1,178,147.62

et 23,908,744.48

11,535,8562.27
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(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the combined net profit attributable to shareholders
of ordinary shares of the parent company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue:

ltem EE

Combined net profit attributable to shareholders 5B A B L B R
of ordinary shares of the parent company BHHFHE
Weighted average number of RARBTHINE BARA)

ordinary shares in issue EFHE
Basic earnings per share EXEREEG

Including: Basic earnings per share from Hr: BECEAREGRIE
continuing operations
Basic earnings per share from

discontinued operations

RIEREEAT RS

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
earnings per share as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the six
months ended June 30,2024 and 2023.

(BB SREMIRBARET)

=t BRI

EXgRWKE

EASRKSABERERR
HRRIEE A HFFIBR L
A B BTSN B RAR O M0
FHUEE

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30A L ER

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (BZE:)
140,228,466.38 75,572,149.71
346,749,997.00 346,749,997.00
0.4044 0.2179
0.4044 0.2179

wESRWE
BREE20244F 202346 A

30H IE/NfE B W 8BS 21T
BELalk  ALBESRIK
B E ARG EEAAR -

fac

3

%
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XXXI. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

EXPENDITURES

(1) Research and development expenditure

[tem

Labor costs
Materials, power

and manufacturing inspection fees
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Design and clinical trial fees
Outsourced research and

development expenses
Share-based payment
Others

Total

Including: Expensed research and
development expenditure
Capitalized research and
development expenditure

HH

ALER
MREBHREERRE

WEHHE
Rt KA ARE
Rt EE R

Bt st

Heb: ERHAES L

BAMEHE S

St RN
(—) Wkl
Six months ended June 30,
EE6A30ALLNMER

2024 2023
20244 20234F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RiEER) (FE&)
10,577,855.43 14,073,254.70
13,172,375.09 13,384,037.29
3,880,276.97 3,499,503.60
18,948,303.24 6,856,254.79
3,376,331.45 8,512,159.94
5,557,680.14 6,332,633.02
2,851,205.60 3,235,427.76

58,364,027.92

55,893,271.10

21,671,903.41

36,692,124.51

27,554,063.73

28,339,207.37
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XXXI. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
EXPENDITURES (Continued)

(2

Development expenses

[tem

Biodegradable (PDO polyp-dioxy-
cyclohexanone) occluder

Open flow film sealer

Atrial shunt instrument set

Biodegradable patent foramen
ovale occluder

Biodegradable atrial septal defect
occluder

Transapical mitral valve clip system

Degradable left atrial appendage
occluder

Transcatheter aortic valve
replacement system

Transapical mitral valve
repair system

Balloon dilatation catheter for
aortic valve

Radio frequency atrial septal
puncture needle

Bioabsorbable patent foramen ovale
occluder

Oxide coating single-riveted patent
foramen ovale occluder

Sub-total

Less: provision for impairment

Total

DEDREHER
EYRBREARRHES

EhuRERRR kA

BORZARRER
AR OIS

REEEAATBIRRZS

BOR—RRERZR

IPRRRRRRREE
SR MR SISt
ENARUS AR TS
ABEDDRART AR
It

B RfER

ait

—ﬁ—

—_— T —

PO £ 3 5 B B RS SRR MY R

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

- SR ST (&)

(BB SREMIRBARET)

(=) FRXE

Increase Decrease

during the during the

period period
As at REENEE AER 2% As at
December 31, June 30,
2023 Internal Recognized 2024
2023F development as intangible 20245
124318 expenditure assets 6A30H
(Audited) (Unaudited)
(&%) RS G AREVEE (KHEEr)
- 1,389,879.18 - 1,389,879.18
11,532,123.07 797,813.71 - 12,329,936.78
5,935,697.14 503,673.32 - 6,439,370.46
- 1,689,052.43 - 1,689,052.43
32,046,990.97 4,512,449.16 - 36,559,440.13
15,017,928.64 3,637,804.83 - 18,555,733.47
26,549,945.37 13,200,626.75 - 39,750,572.12
85,217,367.58 4,837,595.66 - 90,054,963.24
9,580,076.74 - - 9,580,076.74
4,157,010.85 170,584.50 - 4,327,595.35
7,762,074.16 730,543.78 - 8,492,617.94
6,297,561.19 904,376.39 - 7,201,937.58
- 4,417,724.80 - 4,417,724.80
204,096,775.71 36,692,124.51 - 240,788,900.22
204,096,775.71 36,692,124.51 - 240,788,900.22

@)
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(RREBRERRSN - SEBMHBARKTT)
XXXIl. CHANGES IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

(1) Changes in scope of consolidation for other
reasons

The Company subscribed RMB5 million in May
2024 to establish Lepu ScienTech (Shenzhen)
Medical Technology Co., Ltd., with a shareholding
ratio of 100.00%. As of the balance sheet date, the
actual contribution was RMB1 million.

XXXILEQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES

(1) Equity in subsidiaries

1. Composition of enterprise group

Main

operation  Registration

location  location
Name of subsidiary FRAASH T2EEN

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy LEFHEEAE  Shanghai  Shanghai
Co,, Ltd. WHERAR  LbE L

Lepu ScienTech (Bejjng) Medical ~ £EL&(ER)  Bejing  Beijing
Technology Co., Lid. BEMHBRAR IR IR

Lepu ScienTech (Shenzhen) Medical -~ £&0% (R31)  Shenzhen  Shenzhen
Tecnology Co., Ltd. ERMEARRA A el

Sttt EREE
(—) Htt RE WA PrESE & 5
KABIR2024F5 ARBHEE
ARHE500.008 JT R 3 243 ()
Z ORI BEEEHEBFR AT
AL BI100.00% - B EE

EREXRA  BREBARY
100.00& 7T °

S ERERRNER
(—) EFATRHREE

1 DEXREELEK

Proportion of shareholding
(%)
FHREL %)

Nature of Direct Indirect  Acquisition

business method

SHEE BE 5 &

Manufacturing industry ~ 100.00 - Acquisition

Hix not under

common

control

SR

Technology 100.00 - Establishment

development R
RiFE

Trading 100.00 - Establishment

8% R
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XXXIV.DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

Inputs used in the fair value measurement are divided
into three levels:

Level 1 inputs refer to quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities available
on the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs refer to inputs that are directly or indirectly
observable for the underlying asset or liability other than
Level 1 inputs.

Level 3 inputs refer to unobservable inputs of the relevant
assets or liabilities.

The level of the measurement result of fair value shall
subject to the lowest level which the input that is of
great significance to the entire measurement of fair value
belongs to.

Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at
fair value at the end of this period

(1)

“HFEFFEMBRRME

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

=

Level 1 fair value

measurement

E-ER

Item BH NMEEHE
. Fairvalue measurementon ~ — HEMAREEGE

a recurring basis

#Trading financial assets WGEREE
1. Financlal assets designated 1. NAREEGEER
at fair value through profit SE AR BERR
or loss SREE
(1) Wealth management (1) BHER
products
#Recelvable financing VELSERE
#0ther debt investments VHMEERE
@ Investments in other equity SHBERTARE
instruments
#0ther non-current financial ViR REAE
assets
Total assets measured at fair FRUCAREHENREAR
value on a recurring basis
#Trading financial liabilties W SERER
1. Trading financial iabilties 1. R5EEEER

RRULARERBORRRE

Total liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

(BB SREMIRBARET)

2 fe R E R % R

nEEFEFMEANE AEBES S
A= EER

ar

F—[@ R ABRETE B EHE
SHHEREEXBEEEETRMS L
REEFABERRE -

E_EBERBAERKRE-EREA
BIMBREEXRBERAFEA
BIRMBAE -

FZE R AEEHEA
AR BB AE -

BENXAE

NABEFEERMENENR @ B
iT@ﬁF{EH+E§I§ﬁf =i /\EEK
EENBABBNRERRE

(=) AR ABERAENEENES
HERD R EE

Fair value on June 30, 2024
2024 %6 B30 RO EE

(Unaudited)
(REE)
Level 2 fair value  Level 3 fair value
measurement measurement Total
FZBR FZEN
NifEEE MEETE At
171,601,780.81 - 171,601,780.81
171,601,780.81 - 171,601,780.81
171,601,780.81 - 171,601,780.81
171,601,780.81 - 171,601,780.81

N

/E;

9)
>
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(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

XXXIV.DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (Continued)

(2

(3)

(4)

The basis for determining the market value of
the recurring and non-recurring level 1 fair value
measurement items

The Group determines the market value of the
recurring and non-recurring level 1 fair value
measurement items based on the quotations in the
active market of the equity instrument at the end of
the period held by the Group.

Valuation techniques and qualitative and
quantitative information of important parameters
for recurring and non-recurring level 2 fair value
measurement items

The fair value of the Wealth Management Products
and other instruments which are measured at
the second level of fair value by the Group are
recognized at the end of the period with the
relevant quotation from the settlement instrument
provider.

Valuation techniques and qualitative and
quantitative information of important parameters
for recurring and non-recurring level 3 fair value
items measurement items

The Group’s investment in equity instruments is
measured at fair value. However, in limited cases, if
the recent information used to determine fair value
is insufficient, or the possible estimated amount
of fair value is widely distributed, and the cost
represents the best estimate of fair value within this
distribution, the cost may represent its appropriate
estimate of fair value within such distribution.

SR 2R REREE (8])

(Z) FENEFREE-—BRAIAE

EIBHETENBERE

AEERERF AN ER T A
R EE™ IS LM RERTETE
SENEREFE BRAAE
BEFfEHEME -

(Z) FENFFREE_BRAIAE

EFTBEE - RANGERN
NMEEZBNEMRERRER

AEEE_BRAABEFE
EMEREIE HARUEE
TAEHERTWHERRERERD
B -

FENEFEE=BRAAE
BT BEE - RANSERE
NMEEZBNEMRERER

AEFEHEETAMNKRENUD
REEFE -BEERBR
T MRAAFETE R EED
MHEETR - KEAREE
WA B EBED MEER
& MARARERTZBERE
NABENREMRTH - ZK
AR KREEZ D MHEERE
NABEMNRE[E -
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(BB SREMIRBARET)

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY S RB A REABE S
TRANSACTIONS
(1) The situation of the Company’s parent company (=) XATNEARER

Parent  Voting rights
company's  of the parent

Registered  shareholding company

capital inthe inthe

(ten thousand Company Company

yuan) (%) (%)

BAFH AT

Registration AR NG AAAN

Parent company name SAF4"  location st Nature of business  E%HEE (Bm)  BREGIC) TRELH%)
Lepu Medical Technology %% (%) B& Beiing 7 Medicalequpment  BEZWAER

(Beiing) Co., Ltd. EHROER production and HE
2] sales 180,458.11 79.94 79.94
(2) The situation of the Company’s subsidiaries (Z) XLFWFLARER
Please refer to Note “XXXIIl. Equity in other entities” RRRFRAMIERFR A
for details of the subsidiaries of the Company. FI=+= HHMTEHRR

%S | -
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(B R 7R LA

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

Sh - BRBLIH/ARETT)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3)

The situation of other related parties
Name of other related parties
HMEABS BB

Anhui Magete Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
ZHABRBBEEMRARAR

Beijing Lejian Dongwai Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.

IEREERINTZ AR QA

Beijing Lepu Precision Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

I REEREBREMRARRAA]

Beijing Lepu Digital Health Technology Co., Ltd.
I REERFREMRARAA]

Beijing Lepu Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

I REEZHR RN AERRAA]

Hefei High-tech Cardiovascular Hospital

A BB = 370 10 E % B B

Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Equipment Co., Ltd.
ik FE BRI AR A A

Lepu International Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
LELBBRER ORI AR AT

Lepu Ruikang (Beijing) Technology Co. Ltd.
HEFR (LR BEAR AR

Shanghai Lepu CloudMed Co., Ltd.
FERETERRERNERAR]

Shenzhen Creative Industry Co., Ltd.
AHRIREERERA A

Sichuan Xingtai Pule Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

)| HE R AL B R R R A R A A
Lepu Care (India) Vascular Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

L RB L RABRES ()

(=) HitbBAB G 1R

Relationship of other related
parties with the Group
HtiFABA BFREIRE

Same ultimate controlling party
Al — A4 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — A4 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — A4 H 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — A4 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — A4 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — S A4 H 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — A4 H 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — SR A4 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — B A4 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — B A4 H 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — B A4 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — AR H 77
Same ultimate controlling party
Al — B A4 H 77



Interim Report 2024

EF

Notes to the 2024 Interim Financial Statements

PO £ 3 5 B B RS SRR MY R

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

—E=

—_— T —

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4)

The situation of related party transactions

1.

Related party transactions in relation to
purchase and sale of goods and provision and

receipt of services

Purchase of goods/receipt of services

Related party

Anhui Magete Medical

Technology Co., Ltd.

Beijing Lejian Dongwai

QOutpatient Department

Co., Ltd.

Beijing Lepu Digital Health
Technology Co., Ltd.

Hefei High-tech

Cardiovascular Hospital

Shenzhen Creative
Industry Co., Ltd.

Sichuan Xingtai Pule
Medical Technology
Co., Ltd.

Beijing Lepu Precision
Medical Technology
Co., Ltd.

Lepu Medical Technology

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
Lepu Ruikang (Beijing)
Technology Co. Ltd.
Beijing Lepu Precision
Medical Technology
Co., Ltd.

Lepu Medical Technology

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Ly

RHEHREERNR
ARAAE

IRERRITDHA
RAR

IRREBFREMNK
ARAAE
ARRHLNERER

MImHREEXER
1]
UIIEE S fe
ARAAE

ol

HE

I
I3

A
Jﬂ#%{l%;ﬁ«gm#ﬁmﬁ

b 3
= DR
ant o
a5
S
ey

St

Bi8

=

=

Content of related
party transaction

Receipt of services

Receipt of services

Receipt of services
Receipt of services
Receipt of services

Receipt of services

Receipt of services

Receipt of services
Receipt of services

Purchase of goods

Purchase of goods

(RIETREERSN - BB BARYT)
ZTE AR S BB B (4R)

(M) ABXS1ER

BB ANA

X
X
RIS
S

b
X
RIS
S

5 5 5
XK XK YR
NS NS NS
¥ 9 ¥

o
XK
5

RE#H B dm
BB 5

TR X

RBER S EREEE

R

Six months ended June 30,

#BE6A0AL}EA

2024
20245
(Unaudited)
(KiE#E)

982,723.33

59,587.00
283,018.87
4,805,963.08

19,040.00

1,886.79

2,110,009.11
3,508,406.92

22,840.00

11,153.91

15,127.17

2023

2023
(Audited)
(1E3T)

186,420.35

2,145,647.73

8,474,424.09

&)
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(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) The situation of related party transactions
(Continued)

1.  Related party transactions in relation to
purchase and sale of goods and provision and

receipt of services (Continued)

Sale of goods/provision of services

Content of related

Related party i party transaction

Lepu Care (India) Lepu Care (India) Sale of goods
Vascular Solutions Vascular Solutions
Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd.

Anhui Magete Medical ZRBBREEENR  Sale of goods
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAR

X" an Qinming Medical ~ ARFBEESERER  Sale of goods
Instrument Co., Ltd. AF]

Lepu International SEERER (R A  Sale of goods
Holdings (Shenzhen) BAF]
Co., Ltd.

2. The situation of related leases

The Group is as lessor:

Type of leased
Name of lessee ECiNEL assets

Shanghai Lepu CloudMed ~ HB&EZ
Co., Ltd. BRAF

ERERD  Property leasing

TR BB R ERBE 3 5 ()

(M) BABXZ1ER (&)

BHEEm ~ FERFER
BB L5 (E)

HEm®R IRHEBE
R

Six months ended June 30,

#E6A30HLXER
2024 2023
20245 20234
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RIEEH) (E=:t)

614,004.00 234,638.33

1,204,247.78 1,048,778.75

1,687,240.16 3,039,663.98

718,969.95
A E 55
AEEEADER :
Six months ended June 30,
#E6A30A1AMEA
2024 2023
2024 20236
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REF) (B=5T)
Rental income Rental income

HREA HEWA

309,163.98 369,506.43
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(BRERERSN  2REMHIBARET)

XXXV. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY CHERBARAMES (1)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) The situation of related party transactions (M) BB BER (&)
(Continued)

3. Compensation of key management personnel 3 [HREFEANSFH

Six months ended June 30,

BE6HA30HLLMEA
2024 2023
20245 20234
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ltem HA (RiEET) (72t
Compensation of key
management personnel A E A B b 6,894,429.11 7,957,413.98
(5) Receivables from and payable to related parties (R) BB AEKRENEREEER
1. Receivables 1. EWEA
As at June 30, 2024 As at December 31, 2023
202456F30H 202312A31A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (&&:1)
Book Provision for Book  Provision for
Item balance  bad debts balance bad debts
BHER Related party B RESA BRER RHEAE SRER
Accounts
receivable
A
Lepu Care (India) Vascular Lepu Care (India) Vascular
Solutions Py, Ltd. Solutions Pyt Ld. 703,216.60 - 607,266.57 -
X an Qinming Medical Instrument ~ RZEHREERER N
Co., Ltd. - - 666,357.00 -
Anhui Magete Medical Technology ~ RA&BREZERK
Co., Ltd. ERAF 834,350.00 - 1,840,400.00 -
Lepu International Holdings SRR (R)
(Shenzhen) ARAT
Co., Ltd. 812,436.20 - - -
Prepayments
R
Hefei High-tech Cardiovascular AEEFLNERER
Hospital 1,641,071.50 - 1,911,592.81 =
Anhui Magete Medical Technology ~ RA2BREEENA
Co., Ltd. ARAH 7,260.00 - 1,065,160.00 -
Sichuan Xingtal Pule Medical )| RS E R R
Technology Co., Ltd. AR A - - 2,000.00 -

Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Equipment jT& FREEZHAR A A
Co., Lt 12,800.00 - _ _
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Receivables from and payable to related parties

(Continued)

2.

Payable

ltem

R

Accounts payable

RN

Other payable
AR R

Related party

Beijing Lepu precision Medical
Technology Co., Ltd.

Hefei high-tech cardiovascular
Hospital

Beijing Lepu Medical Technology
Co., Ltd.

Lepu Medical Technology
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing)
Co., Ltd.

— =

AR 77

I RREERERERK
ARATF
AEEMONERRR

it 3 @ﬁﬂ&%ﬁ

?a*ﬁ

(R &

£ ?%W
B BRAR

—ECNFEYXFERBHRERME
(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)
(BREFFRTRIN - BEMHR/ARET)
CHE RS RS ()

(B) BBATEBENEREEERE
(#&)

FETIEE
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024%56H308 2023F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REGES) (B=E:T)
Book balance Book balance
IR EAHE
20,245.59 2,145,504.56
- 293,460.00
800,309.75 800,309.75
15,127.17 -
- 12,265.53
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_ﬁ_

XXXV.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

(1)

(2

Share options or other equity instruments
issued and outstanding at the end of the Period

Stock options issued and outstanding
at the end of the period
HMRETEI IR E

Remaining

Range of duration of

Vested exercise prices the contract

RTER TTHEERNEE A RFIBRHR

Sales staff - -
HEAR

Managerial staff - -
BEAR

Research and development staff - -
tHEAR

Manufacturing staff - -
HEAE

The conditions of Equity-settled share-based
payment

The fair value recognition method of the equity instruments at grant date
RTBEETAAAEBENETESE

Significant parameters of grant date fair value of equity instruments
KTRRRIAAABENEZZH
The recognition method of best available estimate of vesting equity instruments

AR TARENRTKE

The reason of significant variance between current and previous period estimate

KHfEGHE S B EAZRNREA

The accumulated amount of equity-settled share-based payment included in
capital reserve

NEREEORNX N ABAREN R 2R

St Bk 3T 1
(=) BMARBITENMNROHERE

fhEXTE

Other equity instruments issued and
outstanding at the end of the period

BARBTHEIMEMESRT A

Remaining
Range of duration of
exercise prices the contract

TRERNRE A RFIHHR

RMB3.48/share 4 months
3.487T,/ & 4{8R
RMB3.48/share 4 months
3.487T,/ & 48R
RMB3.48/share 4 months
3.487T/ & 48R
RMB3.48/share 4 months
3.487T,/ & 48R

(Z) UEREENROZMER

Fair value of shares as
determined by appraisal
KAEEENRNANEE

Best estimate of quantities at the
balance sheet date
BEARBRAN

REREHE

None

=

88,839,379.10
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XXXV.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(3)

Share-based payment expenses

“HFEFFEMBRRME

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

(B REFREERASDN

SRBMH/ARET)

St BRI (#8)
(2) RBXMA R

Six months ended June 30,
HE6A0ALNER
2024 2028
20245 2003%
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REHH) (@=3t)
Equity-settled  Cash-settled Equity-settled Cash-settled
share-based  share-based share-based share-based
payments payments Total payments payments Total
DEGREN  UREERM WEREER  NREEED
Vested RTH% R B f &t R Rty it
Sales staff HEAE 1,113,569.60 - 1,113,569.60 821,324.16 - 821,324.16
Managerial staff EEAR 4,749,016.52 - 474901652 583072314 - 5830723.14
Research and development staff  HE#AE 5,557,680.14 - 5557,680.14  6,332,633.02 - 6,332,633.02
Manufacturing staff EEAE 194,346.98 - 194,346.98 841,309.28 - 841,309.28
Total =h) 11,614,613.24 - 11,614,613.24  13,825,989.60 - 13,825,989.60
XXXVIl. SEGMENT INFORMATION CHEREER
Basis for determining reporting segments and 1 HWESBHBEMKBES IR

accounting policies

The Group’s business activities, where independent
financial information is available, are regularly
reviewed and evaluated by key operating decision
makers. The principal operating decision makers
(responsible for allocating resources to operating
segments and evaluating their performance) has
been identified as an executive director of the
Company who makes strategic decisions. The
major operating decision makers evaluate the
performance of reportable operating segments
based primarily on segment revenue, sale costs,
and research and development expenses for
each reportable operating segment. As a result,
segment results will show revenue, cost of sales,
research and development expenses and gross
profit for each reportable operating segment, which
is consistent with the performance assessment of
major operating decision makers.

The Group’s reporting segments are as follows:

The occluder business is mainly operated by
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co., Ltd., which is
engaged in the development and sales of occluder
series for interventional treatment of defective
congenital heart disease.

%

AEBEXBES (AT ERHBL
MBEM) BEBRERKE
EHRB NG - TREER
RE(RBEDEEENHMZE
BEFEERR) ERRES
EHEERRN AR RNITE
FoITBRRERREIEEAR
BRI MELEDMH D B
A~ SHERAR KA B R
ARELEDHNEE - A

b D EFERBE RS RS
EEDBHOEA - HEKAE

MBEEAREN ERIEL
EARENEBEERRE X
g o

AEBHOREDEAT

HEREBIER LBTARE
BEEMHUERARESE %
RBEFBRIBIE ST R L JAS
TAVBE R B IE SR AT 3 K2

N

s

9)
>
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(BRBFFRERASN

XXXVil. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

1.

Basis for determining reporting segments and
accounting policies (Continued)

The heart valve business is mainly operated by
the Beijing branch of Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy Co., Ltd., which is currently engaged in the
research and development business of heart valve

medical devices.

Separate information on segment assets and
segment liabilities is not provided to the major
operating decision makers as they are not used by
the major operating decision makers to allocate the
resources of the operating segment or evaluate its

performance.

The financial information of report segments

ltem

Main operating income

Main operating costs

Gross profit

Research and development expenses
Segment profit

Undistributed item

Other operating income
Other operating costs

Taxes and surcharges
Selling expenses
Administrative costs
Financial expenses

Other income

Investment income

Gains from change in fair value
Loss on impairment of credit
Operating profit
Non-operating income
Non-operating expenses
Total profit

HH

TEXRBUA
TERBRA
M
S
HEME

ADRER
EfRHRA
EfRHRA
e RHm
HERH
FEER
BBER
Eft s
RN

PYREL L

fERRERR
i)
SRIMA
BRI
MBBE

St SEER ()
1 HEDBHBEMBESFEH
R (%)

DRREREEER BTN
LIEATMHBRARRIER

DRBEL - ZABBEAEE
/O B o S 8 B 2R K O BT B X
7 o

MERETRELRRERHEE
BOOMEERDMARE
B AREBREERRENE
RELERDEEEDHBNE
R EHEE KRR -

HBEDBOHMBER

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

2024%1-68

The occluder- Cardiac valve-
segment segment Total
HERIN DEBERS B &t
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RiEF) (FiE®it) (FiEwat)
248,790,984.67 - 248,790,984.67
22,209,623.20 - 22,209,623.20
226,581,361.47 - 226,581,361.47
11,009,609.09 10,662,294.32 21,671,903.41
215,571,752.38 -10,662,294.32  204,909,458.06
309,163.98
220,651.62
2,819,277.61
31,485,870.27
18,413,535.52
-14,125,148.17
953,389.05
2,056,166.79
1,601,780.81
-1,126,924.40
163,888,847.44
251,841.94
3,478.52

164,137,210.86
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